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About the Design of Our Annual Report 2024-25

The cover design of our Annual Report 2024-25 is inspired by the “Ripple” motif in the AFRC logo, symbolising our impact on
the accounting profession. The design of this year’s report embodies the theme of the AFRC’s inaugural Regional Regulatory
Forum (RRF), titled “Transforming Regulation, Governance, and Development for a Resilient and Sustainable Future.” This
design underscores our purpose and emphasises our commitment to driving progress, collaboration, and positive change within
the profession.
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About the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council

The Accounting and Financial Reporting Council (AFRC) is an independent body established under the Accounting and Financial
Reporting Council Ordinance. As an independent regulator, the AFRC leads the accounting profession by upholding professional
standards, safeguarding the public interest, and promoting the profession’s healthy development.
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CHAI RMAN S STATEMENT

| am honoured to present the AFRC annual report for the year ended 31
March 2025, in my new capacity as the Chairman of the Accounting and
Financial Reporting Council (AFRC), a position | assumed on 1 January 2025.

Over the years, | have witnessed the evolution of the profession from its
traditional roots to a dynamic role that emphasises risk management,
transparency, accountability, and data-driven decision-making. The changing
business landscape - shaped by economic factors, regulations, globalisation,
technology, and financial complexities - underscores the necessity for
vigilance, agility, and innovative solutions within the accounting profession.

The AFRC is dedicated to maintaining high standards in financial
reporting and auditing, ensuring market integrity, fostering trust within the
profession, and safeguarding the public interest. Achieving these goals
require coordinated efforts among all stakeholders in the financial reporting
ecosystem, to strengthen the profession and contribute to a vibrant capital
market.
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AFRC Strategic Priorities

In March 2025, we published our three-year strategic plan for 2025-2027,
outlining our priorities and approach to maximising organisational resources
to achieve our mission. Our core focuses are Regulation, Governance, and
Development, underpinned by Organisational Effectiveness.

Regulation

Trust in the regulatory system is vital and developed through equitable and
transparent practices. The AFRC is committed to maintaining a robust
regulatory framework that ensures high standards of audit quality and
compliance. We follow a proportional and risk-based approach to achieve
effective regulatory outcomes, whilst minimising unnecessary regulatory
burdens on regulated entities. Our periodic inspections of firms are essential
processes aimed at ensuring compliance with laws, regulations, and industry
standards. This is the fifth year since we began our annual inspection cycles,
and our persistent efforts are yielding notable improvements among larger
firms.

Recent high-profile cases of accounting fraud and misconduct underscore
the need for stringent oversight and ethical vigilance. The AFRC employs
a variety of regulatory tools, including standards development, monitoring,
inspections, and enforcement mechanisms, to deter and address
misconduct. Strengthening cooperation with Mainland China authorities and
our regulatory counterparts is essential for maintaining financial integrity and
stability locally and across jurisdictions.

Governance

Robust governance frameworks promote ethical practices, transparency,
and accountability within firms and public interest entities. The AFRC
undertakes proactive measures, including the issuance of guidelines and
engaging in ongoing dialogues to ensure compliance and foster a culture of
integrity among regulated entities. Our emphasis on governance extends to
stakeholders in the financial reporting ecosystem, including management,
audit committees, investors, and auditors. Over the past year, we issued
15 publications and were involved in 54 stakeholder engagement activities
focused on critical issues such as audit quality, corporate governance, and
regulatory compliance.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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Development

Revitalising the profession and managing talent is crucial. The future of the
profession relies on the ability to attract, retain, and develop highly skilled
professionals and young talent. The integration of advanced technologies -
such as artificial intelligence (Al), machine learning, and data analytics - along
with the shift towards more robust sustainability reporting and assurance, will
transform the accounting landscape and provide growth opportunities for the
profession.

Enhancing the profile of the profession and Hong Kong’s status as an
international financial centre is central to our work. In December 2024, we
organised the first ever Regional Regulatory Forum (RRF) for around 370
senior industry leaders, government officials, regulators, and international
participants to facilitate insightful discussions on emerging trends and
challenges in financial reporting and auditing.

Organisational Effectiveness

One of our core values is proficiency, encompassing efficiency, effectiveness,
and professionalism. As the external environment continues to evolve and
increase in complexity, it is essential for us to refine our organisational
processes and skillsets. Enhancing our proficiency allows us to innovate
with existing resources and fulfil our mission while exercising prudent cost
controls.

Future-Proofing the Accounting Profession

In the coming year, the AFRC will continue focusing its regulatory efforts
to ensure that audits are conducted with integrity, scepticism, and
professionalism, setting quality as the gold standard in audit, rather than low
cost. By strategically leveraging technology and incorporating sustainability
practices, we can enhance our profession’s value and relevance, to pave the
way for a more resilient and sustainable future.

Lastly, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to the former AFRC
Chairman Dr. Kelvin Wong for his exceptional leadership and dedication
during his six-year tenure. His vision has guided the AFRC through numerous
challenges and achievements. | also wish to thank our Board Members for
their counsel and guidance, the Financial Services and the Treasury Bureau
for their support and recognition of our work, and our dedicated management
team and staff for their hard work in executing the AFRC’s mission.
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CEQO’S STATEMENT
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“Given the cautious budgetary conditions,
market unpredictability, tariff disruptions,
and geopolitical tensions, the coming
year will present significant challenges for
the profession and the AFRC. However,
there are also opportunities to harness
technology and sustainable practices to
rejuvenate the profession and attract new
talent.”
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Ms Janey Lai CEO
WEELLT THREHR

As of 31 December 2024, the AFRC regulates approximately 1,900 firms and
corporate practices and nearly 48,000 Certified Public Accountants (CPAS).
This marks a significant expansion from our initial oversight of 80 registered
local Public Interest Entities (PIE) auditors and over 30 recognised overseas
PIE auditors when we were first established in 2019. Our regulatory oversight
and challenges have grown along with market complexity and demands.

We must evolve our regulatory framework and embrace innovative practices
to cultivate a transparent, accountable, and sustainable environment within
the accounting profession. This approach not only addresses current
challenges but also anticipates future needs, establishing a foundation for a
progressive regulatory landscape.

Auditor Changes and Audit Quality

There has been a significant increase in PIE auditor changes over the past
year, at times happening at critical junctures. While rotating auditors can
provide new insights and reduce risks of familiarity, outcomes can vary.
Changes driven by fee negotiations may lead to smaller firms without
sufficient resources taking on demanding PIE engagements, compromising
audit quality and potentially leading to trading suspensions.
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CEO’S STATEMENT
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The pursuit of lower audit fees has often overshadowed the goal of enhancing
audit quality, leading to a troubling ‘race to the bottom.” The AFRC has
shared its concerns and provided guidance to the profession, including the
management and audit committees of listed and public interest entities, on
mitigating the risks associated with these transitions, and reinforcing the
importance of prioritising quality over fees. Accordingly, the AFRC will release
an Audit Quality Indicators (AQI) framework in the future to assist audit
committees in measuring and evaluating audit quality, thereby facilitating
more meaningful discussions with their auditors.

Elevating Professional Standards

Continuous learning is essential for keeping pace with industry advancements,
new regulations, and best practices. In addition to our talks, webinars, and
publications, we have strengthened our social media presence on LinkedIn
and YouTube and launched our WeChat page in December 2024. Through
digital content such as the AFRC Connect video series and information
shared via social media, we can quickly disseminate crucial industry insights
and resources to practitioners, particularly those in the small and medium-
sized practices, to better support their work.

Integration of Advanced Technologies

Technologies such as Al, machine learning, and data analytics hold the
potential to enhance the accuracy and efficiency of audits while introducing
innovative methods for financial reporting and analysis. We encourage the
profession to explore how these tools can improve operational efficiencies
and deliver greater value to their clients.

The AFRC has also embarked on its technological transformation journey
by digitalising our registration processes to boost efficiency, streamline
operations, and mitigate security and data risks. We will continue to invest in
Al to enhance risk assessment in support of our statutory functions.

Regulatory and Stakeholder Engagements

In December 2024, the AFRC hosted a regulatory roundtable with Mainland
and international counterparts to strengthen cooperation on industry issues.
Throughout the year, we engaged with professional bodies and practitioners
to communicate our regulatory principles and actions. These discussions
offered valuable insights into their perspectives, industry trends, opportunities,
and challenges, enabling us to identify areas for collaboration and support the
profession’s growth and sustainability.

Building on the positive reception of our inaugural Regional Regulatory Forum
(RRF) 2024, the AFRC will organise the second edition of the RRF in 2025.
Our goal is to create an annual platform for open dialogue and collaboration
with local and international regulatory counterparts, professional bodies,
standards setters, and practitioners.
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Incorporating Sustainability
Sustainability reporting and assurance are becoming increasingly important
as stakeholders demand greater transparency and accountability. The
accounting profession can contribute to the broader goals of environmental
stewardship and corporate responsibility.

The AFRC is intensifying its efforts to promote sustainability in supporting
the Hong Kong SAR Government’s Roadmap on Sustainability Disclosure in
Hong Kong. In January 2025, we released a benchmark study on sustainable
reporting and assurance to identify areas for capacity building for more robust
sustainability practices and reporting standards. In the second half of 2025,
we will conduct a public consultation to accelerate the development of the
regime for sustainability assurance and ethics standards.

Looking Ahead

| ' would like to extend my sincere gratitude to Dr Kelvin Wong, who retired as
the AFRC Chairman in December 2024 after six years of dedicated service.
His invaluable guidance and leadership were instrumental in shaping the
regulatory function of the AFRC. In January 2025, we welcomed our new
Chairman, Dr David Sun. We are working closely with Dr Sun, leveraging
his extensive experience in accounting and the public sector, to achieve our
strategic goals.

Given the cautious budgetary conditions, market unpredictability, tariff
disruptions, and geopolitical tensions, the coming year will present significant
challenges for the profession and the AFRC. However, there are also
opportunities to harness technology and sustainable practices to rejuvenate
the profession and attract new talent.

The AFRC has clearly articulated its vision and strategic initiatives, to
strengthen the accounting regulatory framework with emphasis on high-
quality financial reporting and audit standards, underpinned by strong
governance practices. Our goal is to safeguard and elevate the profession’s
reputation while ensuring a resilient and sustainable future. High-quality
standards enhance the reliability and transparency of financial information,
ultimately fostering a vibrant capital market that drives business growth and
economic stability.
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MISSION AND STRATEGIC PRIORITIES
FEan R RIS E B,

P P
Mission {£ 10
The mission of the AFRC is to safeguard the public interest by maintaining high standards in auditing and financial reporting,
fostering trust in Hong Kong'’s capital markets, and promoting the development of the accounting profession.
S RNE G ERBERSKTOET RMBEREL  REART G - EMEREBERTSNAE
WHBEAHEENERE -

The AFRC fulfills its mission through: U RBEBA T T ENEHm

e Dialogue e  BRER

e Understanding o IBETHE

e Collaboration o IEHAIE

e Law and Governance e EEBR

e Thought Leadership o BHEZ

Core Values BOMEE

The AFRC is committed to the following core values: G RENUER AT ZOMEE

¢ Independence and impartiality o RBIURRNIE
The AFRC operates independently. We perform our functions fairly, KBRREEEN - ARAFAERERM
impartially and consistently, free from interference by the auditing WITIHE PTEEFERMETEENT
profession and listed entities, and from political pressure. T8 - R RBURE S -

e Accountability and transparency s HBRERASEHE
The AFRC is dedicated to ensuring accountability and transparency in KBREREEHE  BNBRRIIEFABRE
its regulatory role. We publish reports to help the profession and the MRFEAE - RKMBERHEMRE  FBEAR
public understand our operations and assess our performance. RNRT R RKBHEE - Wk ERM& TEX

R o

. Integrity . =
Board Members and staff are committed to upholding the highest EZRKEREEBEIRTRaMEIRE
standards of integrity and maintaining ethical excellence in all our M NEMBESFEBR LM EER
activities. SF o

e Proficiency o IEEAHEE
We pledge to achieve our missions efficiently, effectively and KEAREGUARY  BEEEENSN - &
professionally. KA BRI
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MISSION AND STRATEGIC PRIORITIES

Fan kR ER
Strategic Priorities
RESE R
Regulation Governance
BEE i
(%]
Upholding the quality of Cultivating a healthy Promoting the development DE "
financial reporting and ecosystem grounded in of the accounting profession ZIch8
audit, thereby safeguarding quality financial reporting by advocating sustainability, B
stakeholders and the public and auditor selection digital transformation, and B3
interest talent management 2z
=
HEBERRETEER A B R FIE R & BBEEAFEN - ¥
PAMRBERs 0 & R AR Az REMEBERAE - EiE BIEERAS TR
BENERRS fRESTEXRR

Organisational
Effectiveness
HAEE T RE

Driving effective outcomes
through efficient processes

BIBRHBRIRIEE A MAR
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MISSION AND STRATEGIC PRIORITIES
foan B SR EE
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Regulation = Upholding the quality of financial reporting and audit
HEEEREETTEER

High-quality financial reporting and audit are the cornerstones of market integrity. Accurate and reliable financial
reporting enhances investor confidence and fosters transparency. It lowers the risk of financial misstatements
and fraud, thereby protecting stakeholder interests and supporting sustainable economic growth. The AFRC is
committed to maintaining rigorous standards in financial reporting and audit to ensure market stability and efficiency,
ultimately contributing to the overall health of the economy.

SERNPFERREA T HBRENESL - ERAENVHEREILRKEESOLINRERE - BEMEHER
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Cultivating a healthy ecosystem grounded in quality
e financial reporting and auditor selection

5/A BEUEEVEER RSN EE SRR

Governance

Effective governance is crucial for maintaining public trust in the accounting profession. Our initiatives focus on
promoting ethical practices, accountability, and robust governance structures within firms. In recent years, by
adopting a risk-based and proportionate approach to regulation, improvements in audit quality among larger audit
firms have been observed.

To further strengthen governance, we have developed guidelines on corporate governance. These are reinforced
through regular training sessions and workshops, ensuring that stakeholders are well-informed and equipped to
uphold the highest governance standards.
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MISSION AND STRATEGIC PRIORITIES
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Promoting the development of the accounting
profession

L BEet LR

Development

We are dedicated to advancing the sustainable development of the accounting profession by enhancing stakeholder
engagement through seminars, briefings, surveys, videos, social media and publications. Our goal is to improve
market understanding and clearly communicate our regulatory expectations, especially for small and medium
practitioners (SMPs). To achieve this, we actively collaborate with regulators, stakeholders, and the public through
various channels, ensuring our regulatory principles, policies, and impacts are effectively conveyed.

A significant challenge facing the accounting profession is the ongoing talent shortage. To address this, we work
with universities to showcase the profession's value and benefits to students. We also collaborate with the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) to strengthen the talent pipeline, support career growth,
and improve retention.
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Additionally, we will partner with educational institutions to align curricula with industry needs. By promoting
innovation in accounting practices and technologies, we aim to equip professionals for a rapidly changing
environment.

In alignment with the Hong Kong SAR Government’s sustainability roadmap, we engage with relevant financial
regulators and stakeholders to advance Hong Kong'’s sustainability assurance framework. By adopting international
standards, we promote high-quality assurance and reinforce Hong Kong’s status as a leader in sustainable finance.
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MISSION AND STRATEGIC PRIORITIES
EALYSE A E R

Organisational Driving effective outcomes through efficient
Effectiveness processes
AR SN RE UBMRREE A MR R

One of our core values is proficiency, which encompasses efficiency, effectiveness, and professionalism. As
the external environment grows increasingly complex, we must strengthen our organisational processes and
capabilities. Improving our proficiency enables us to innovate using existing resources while maintaining prudent
budgetary controls and delivering on our mission.

Our departments collaborate closely to share regulatory findings, intelligence, and emerging risks, ensuring timely
responses to regulatory concerns. This seamless collaboration maintains a cohesive and consistent approach. By
leveraging technology automation, we streamline operations, boost efficiency, and amplify our regulatory impact.

To stay ahead of emerging trends, we invest in staff development through targeted training in areas including
sustainability and Al. This builds technical expertise, supports professional growth, and ensures we remain agile in a
rapidly evolving landscape.
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Highlights
Key figures for 2024-25

Policy, Registration and Oversight
BER - MR EE

111

new and renewal applications
for the registration of practice
units approved

RPURENPHRHE AR EEL

new and renewal applications for the
registration of local PIE auditors approved
RFEMBLARFISERZBEH 2R ALY
Rt

new and renewal applications for the
recognition of overseas PIE auditors
approved
REZVHEIIM AR SERZBEDH2HER
HRRAsR A

HKICPA committee meetings observed

REBEHMLASRREEREE

62
50

40
| Inspection &ZZE %ﬁ |

03 humn
o1

PIE engagements

BAaRFLEESEHTE

Non-PIE en?agements
BELrRFIGERESFRE

inspections regarding compliance with anti-money
5 1 laundering and counter-terrorist financing requirements
RERETNEABREHI FRESRACHER

2 specific scope inspections

ABPEBEER

9 disciplinary cases completed
FREESERE T

Decision Notices issued

REBRMEC R
H 5 of pecuniary penalties imposed
==k
millionE B#&TT A

review cases before the Accounting and
4 Financial Reporting Revie\!v Tribunal
REEHRMEESERERRETERNES

HIGHLIGHTS
TEEE,

TEEE
2024-25FEEFEEHE

Investigation and Enquiry

AEREM %

pursuable complaints and referrals
3 2 6 handled

A ERRRENEEE
assessments of pursuable complaints and

2 5 5 referrals completed
Al IRE R R R BB R

1 3 0 financial statements being selected for review
B HRRBHE

2 5 l7 investigations handled
RAZEARCEE

16

investigations completed

RRAEERC TR

enquiries handled

REMCRE

| Discipline #ZRZE% Q

L6
Corporate i3

1 5 publications E&}

94
25,540
39
95

2 short videos
BER

stakeholder engagement activities conducted

BIEMERETD

stakeholders engaged

EEfhEsR

press releases

AR

social media feeds

Wit IR AEE
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HIGHLIGHTS

THEEE

Year in Review

FEER

Accounting and Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2024-25

Apr - Jun
WA -7xAH

Acted on whistle-blower allegations against a firm
W—R Gt ERH PRI TE

49th Annual Meeting of the IOSCO
FREF 2R ESERE 9 BEFS

AFRC suspended a practising CPA for two years
with fine of HK$300,000 for disregarding two
statutory requirements

S RH—FETENRAR MIEA T 2k M A R
M - WEFEE 30 BT

The Importance of Audit Documentation Integrity
(RETERRENERNL)

Roundtable Discussion on Audit Quality and
Climate-integrated Audits in Hong Kong
(BREEHERERKGSETERA®)

Setting and Reinforcing Tone at the Top to
Achieve Quality Audits
(B RZFESETHAAERSEREN

Be Prepared for Undertaking PIE Engagements
REARAN=EBRBMBAREART TR
15 B 15D

Analysis of Listed Entities Suspended from
Trading Due to Delay of Preliminary Annual
Results Announcement

(FIEEAT S FREEEMERN LT EEBIN

Completed the review of an internal investigation
of a firm

SR RGN EBMANHENES

2 RMKERSE 2024-25F 5K

2023 Annual Inspection Report
(2023 FEERHE)

Statements on reinforcing compliance expectations
and highlighting cross-boundary regulatory
collaboration with the MoF in audit oversight

B RS R ENEMBEEEAEERN

BREEAE

The ASEAN Audit Regulators Group (AARG) —
Financial Statements Surveillance Group (FSSG)
Workshop 2024

REEAEERE EEE

2024 Annual Investigation Report
(2024 FEREHE)

University outreach to the Chinese University of
Hong Kong
BEERNARBINEED

AFRC imposed fines of over HK$1.7 million on PIE
audit firm and three others for serious audit breaches
S RHE ST REM= A LTEITE
BEERIFOEE 170 8T

Briefing sessions with auditors on 2023 Annual
Inspection Report

HZZEIH 20283 FEERBERTHHE

Statement on maintaining the quality of cross-
border audit services
B #EESEARBEER

2024 Oversight Report
(2024 FEEERE)




HIGHLIGHTS
TEEH

Meetings with firms of higher regulatory concerns
HEEHIERESREBMEE

Oct - Dec ’
+A-+=A8

Inspection Insights — Root Cause Analysis and Remediation:
A Call to Action for Quality Improvement

(BRAR - RARAD T RAHIEE - FRITEARTER)

Safeguarding Auditor Independence: Concerns
1 | Surrounding Procurement and Purchases from
Audit Clients

Dr Kelvin Wong retired as Chairman of the AFRC
BEAMELREGURER

(BB - MEA TP RERARN
ER)

j Audit Focus: 2024 Year-End Audits
E (BEHESE - 2024 FEEER)

Jan - Mar J
3 Audit Implications of Current Economic _ H - = H
@ Conditions for Hong Kong-Listed Companies h
CEBRRE TS LT ARBHTE) - y
Dr David Sun appointed as Chairman of the g@
. . _ _ _ AFRC (1—5‘ ﬁ
Meeting with Qianhai Authority on cross boundary RiEE ST A BEE =
k J development opportunities 1
= = HEpFEREREEIREEEEEE
Statement on importance of adherence to
—e— Reinforcing commitment to tackle bogus —e—  registration requirements for carrying out PIE
J_ accountant issues J_ sl o
== TR Ee R — B gFAETARMSEREEFMEENE
2t
]

k J on Audit Regulation
= ZEXEITAFStEBLESF16EEE - AFRC Connect episode 1- How Important is Audit

uj Risk Assessment?

BE(EMBMER  EtRRFHELER?

Overview of the Non-Public Interest Entity Audit

E | Market

o
/'\E"-‘:‘ \"‘“ =
(EEFARNnREERT SR X Checkpoint - Obtaining an Understanding of the
T _—_ i Ej Audit Client's IT Environments
1 -24 Annual Report CRRIE— T REST R T B35
Ej (8115 2023-24 %) ® / ’

k J Regional Regulatory Forum 2024 Analysing the Market Readiness

0024 B HEEE 1T 3 for Sustainfability Reporting and
E Assurance in Hong Kong

(BB FEERRIZETS
MoF's courtesy visit to the AFRC BN
g’ _J BRI BB M

o
AFRC Report Digest: Reminders for 2024/25
AFRC imposed fines totalling HK$1.456 million = 1 Year-End Audits
P on PIE auditor and two others for serious u RAENETE - TR 2024/25 FEEHED
/’l audit breaches, and gave its first direction for 2R
= additional CPD ®
S B —IZEED R EMRALA T ERT T IERR - Checkpoint - Reminders for Auditors' Reporting on
BERIFEE 1456 B - BNBHEINGE @ Licensed Corporations

HEEEETR GBI B - BRI E B R E 2 HR)

‘
i
‘
‘
i
0
| Participated in PCAOB 16th International Institute
i
i
i
i
l
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HIGHLIGHTS
TYEER,

Driving Progress: Commitment to Our Strategic
Priorities

In accordance with our Strategic Priorities, the AFRC has been focusing
its efforts on Regulation, Governance, Development, and Organisational

Effectiveness over the past financial year and achieved positive and impactful
results.

HEER  BIRBER
SVRNBENHER - BEIBE] (84
(R RMAMHK A MARRES - BUSEAR
BBER -

Regulation E&

Refining the Regulatory Framework

Since our establishment, we have fully exercised our regulatory powers to
uphold the integrity of the accounting profession. We continue to prioritise
investigations into high-profile cases to deter misconduct, while refining
policies and practices to ensure Public Interest Entity (PIE) auditors meet the
highest quality standards. For example, we published an article to remind PIE
auditors and practice units which are considering registration as PIE auditors
with the AFRC, aiming to communicate the AFRC’s expectations regarding
their readiness and intention to undertake PIE engagements.

Our regulatory framework is comprehensive, covering market surveillance,
investigative actions, and enforcement measures. Through inspections,
complaints, referrals, and financial statement reviews, we identify audit
deficiencies, misconduct, and non-compliance, taking appropriate action to
address issues.

By enforcing robust and transparent disciplinary measures, we set clear
standards for professional conduct and foster a culture of proactive
compliance. This approach strengthens public trust, reinforces market
integrity, and supports Hong Kong'’s position as a global financial hub.

Strengthening Regulatory Collaboration
In today’s interconnected financial markets, effective collaboration with other
regulators is essential to address risks to audit quality and financial reporting.

To maximise regulatory synergies, we work closely with local and international
regulators across disciplines to address shared concerns, combat market
misconduct, and ensure the orderly operation of financial markets. Where
necessary, we conduct joint operations with other regulators to tackle
financial crime and serious misconduct effectively.

Accounting and Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2024-25
S RUBERRE 2024-25F
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https://www.afrc.org.hk/en-hk/news-centre/news/afrc-reminds-pie-auditors-to-be-prepared-for-undertaking-pie-engagements/

During the reporting period, we joined forces with the Financial Services and
the Treasury Bureau (FSTB), the Inland Revenue Department (IRD), and the
HKICPA to formulate measures to tackle the issue of “bogus accountants”.
We published a dedicated webpage on our website to educate the public
on identifying bogus accountants, the use of the AFRC’s online registers
of practice units, and the appropriate channels for lodging complaints or
reporting related offences to law enforcement agencies, in an effort to foster
the healthy and sustainable development of the accounting profession whilst
ensuring the overall quality and credibility of financial reporting.

In addition, we continue working closely with key regulators including the
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (HKEX), the Securities and
Futures Commission (SFC), and Hong Kong Monetary Authority (HKMA)
to monitor changes in the market landscape. Our collaborative efforts aim
to proactively identify and mitigate emerging risks that could threaten the
quality of audits and financial reporting and undermine investor confidence.
Leveraging on the AFRC’s memorandum of understanding with the Hong
Kong Police Force (HKPF) signed in September 2022, we have been in
active cooperation with the police in our case referrals concerning suspected
criminal offences under the AFRCO including bogus accountant issues and
breach of registration requirements under the AFRCO.

Beyond local partnerships, we are committed to strengthening collaborations
with Mainland China and overseas regulators. Over the past year, we continue
to strengthen cooperation with the Ministry of Finance (MoF) of the People's
Republic of China (PRC), enabling access to audit working papers of Mainland
Chinese companies listed in Hong Kong.

Accounting and Financial
Reporting Council

MoF’s courtesy visit to AFRC office
BRVBE e Bl AE

AFRC meets with the
Qianhai Authority
ey RENSEEREA

HIGHLIGHTS
TEEZ

BEHA > ZMBRATEEBRELR - BB
Rt Ag  HEEGITRRETEIME -
RPERE ERIBEERE  HELARBAIRE
FHED - RS REVRE BRI M
PAR 3 38 8 RSB A SR IB IR SR SR RARRE 5F
17 MMEE SR EXRRERAIBEER - RSHE
REATSERNERBE R R AEN -

BB EEREERGREEMBRAR (B
) BHERHEEHERZE S (RER)REE
CREERSER) ST BETHERIE  £X
MBI FEHFIWEFA T EEAEE -
B 5IE SR MR B E E OFTERR - RIBEE B
BEFRBEBRN2022F9 AR BN REE -
BBLSRIE R (ST R IEIERBIEH) BITH
ENEAR(BERSTMERERFMETEE) H
ZHRFEGEE -

R A RSN - RPIE) INsR R i & BIFR EE
RS - BE—F  HMABERMCEERY
BB & (EH S - BISAER L A EE T
TEIETS °

AFRC delegates visit various
Mainland authorities in Beijing
S RRREELRFHZEN
b EBFT
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HIGHLIGHTS
TYEER,

In March 2025, our delegation, led by the AFRC Chairman and CEO, visited
Beijing and held productive discussions with the MoF’s Supervision and
Evaluation Bureau (SEB) and Accounting Regulatory Department, and
the China Securities Regulatory Commission (CSRC)’s Department of
Accounting. The meetings covered regulatory strategies and addressed key
challenges in overseeing the audit profession and exchanged insights on
enhancing cross-boundary regulatory collaboration between Hong Kong
and Mainland China. This visit marks a significant step in strengthening
relationships between the financial regulatory bodies and supports the
development of robust audit and reporting standards across jurisdictions.

As an affiliate member of the International Organization of Securities
Commissions (I0SCO), we attended I0SCO’s Annual Meeting in Greece in
May 2024. We met with regulators from other jurisdictions and discussed
mutual interests in regulating audits of listed companies.

In October 2024, AFRC delegates attended the 16th International Institute
on Audit Regulation organised by the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (PCAOB) in Washington DC, USA. The event, themed “Raising the
Bar for Audit Quality”, involved dialogues and exchanges of views on issues
related to auditor oversight, audit quality, and investor protection with audit
regulators from 40 jurisdictions and officials from international organisations.

In February 2025, we met with the Financial Reporting Council of the UK at
our office to discuss audit market information, regulatory strategy, and share
experiences.

Meeting with the Financial Reporting Council

28 February 2025

BIARES -

20253 A  AREF RITHBE FE ML
R B BHERTER S aRTEEES
I HETEAERNANRN R BT EEEE
RS HBRE M EE TR - UL BREE
AERBER - WA HEHZENIL S BETH
BEREBAFERE  ABRIAEEEET RER
IEEMBRIBHIS -

ERBIRELSEHER ‘AQ#ﬁWE@E
BPIR2024F5 A2 MERBERMOFEE R
HREMEE MBI LT AT %ﬁt&%éiﬁé

2024F108 - ARNRERLFEER L RAFZETE
BELBeRERBEEMNET NERTESEHE

e BEMEARTERRE|EE - 84006

REEEREEETMBERBERAHSE BaE
MEE  H|itEEaREERERMAYFERIR
ER -

2025%F2 F - BRI KB B IER B E
SIS EMREEREETHR  UNFER -

AFRC strengthens its international perspective
through meetings with international regulators
and organisations.

2 B R EER BB A ERE - R

These efforts with local, regional, and international regulators are critical in
addressing deficiencies and misconduct in an increasingly interconnected
market environment. Our engagement with international regulators not
only contributes to building a robust global regulatory framework but also
enhances investor confidence in Hong Kong’s regulatory regime. This, in turn,
enhances the city’s reputation as a top destination for global capital.

Accounting and Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2024-25
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Enhancing Inspection Efficiency Through Regulatory

Collaboration

Throughout the year, our representatives attended meetings, forums, and
seminars organised by local, Mainland China, and overseas regulators.
These interactions facilitated discussions on market trends, challenges, and
emerging risks in accounting, enhancing our efforts to address audit-related
industry issues.

We are committed to fostering local regulatory cooperation. Throughout
the year, we engaged in constructive dialogues with key local regulators,
including the SFC, the HKMA, and the SEB of the MoF, to share our market
monitoring observations. These discussions provided valuable opportunities
for exchanging market intelligence, particularly concerning emerging risks
within the licensed corporation and banking sectors, allowing us to refine our
inspection focus.

Evolving Regulations to Meet Current Needs

We continuously review and update our regulatory framework to address
emerging risks and challenges. By proactively identifying areas for
improvement, we aim to ensure that our regulations remain balanced, relevant
and effective. We will evolve our regulations by closely monitoring market
developments and needs, as well as drawing from our own experience.

HIGHLIGHTS
TEEZ

BB EE MR ER AL
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HIGHLIGHTS
TYEER,

oo

Governance &R

i

Strengthening Corporate Governance and Ethical Practices
We have made significant strides in enhancing corporate governance
structures, ethical practices, and accountability within audit firms. Recognising
the challenges faced by these firms, we conducted comprehensive industry
analysis to identify key pain points impacting audit quality. The research
covered both public and non-public interest entity markets, examining critical
factors such as demand and supply dynamics, market competition, levels
of supervision, workload, attrition rates, and vacancy rates. These findings
have provided invaluable insights for targeted guidelines aimed at raising
awareness of issues that adversely affect audit quality.

By fostering a culture of continuous improvement and accountability, these
recommendations encourage audit firms to implement necessary changes
that promote ethical practices and enhance overall governance.

We published an article titled “The Importance of Audit Documentation
Integrity”, aiming to remind auditors of the key standards relating to audit
documentation integrity and to emphasise the importance of improving
audit quality through the development of an effective system of audit
documentation policies, procedures, and controls.

When the AFRC observed trading suspensions of listed entities due to delays
in announcing preliminary annual results, we published an analysis addressing
this issue and emphasised the need for ongoing efforts to maintain high-
quality audits and financial reporting to protect the the public interest.

LR ERIREEERE
BAERASFMEFME GRS  BEERE
BMERH T ERSERER - 7HISHER
FRETE DR - HMZEITEST - BHIFEE
AEENBERER - RREARNREREI
RRMEZEENE - REHEFE  mHEHRF
EERE  TIFE RAERRBUZRERER -
BB REIE B RS REEERE - 17T
ERYPERTERABNRA -

FBIBAFESCERERAEL  BERERES
FHENESERV BNE - HBBRERYER
ERERKF

BfEM (RETBRACENEEN) HXE -
REZBENVE TE XM T BERE  @HES
BB LE - B RERERSIRES

BEERI FHARETEELT YL EE N E R
o AREMEELN - BABESIERFE
EETEMBERARB LRSI B ENE -

STANDARDS LAWS

POLICIES
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Enhancing the Role of Stakeholders in Accounting

To enhance transparency and accountability, we have focused on reinforcing
the roles of audit committees, audit firms, and company management.
This year, we developed guidelines outlining ethical behaviour, professional
standards, and key responsibilities for these groups. For instance, we

HIGHLIGHTS
TEEH

RAFNETSHENAL

RIERFAFEMEN  RMNERRECEAES
g @arﬁﬁi%f’iﬁﬁ&“ﬁﬁqﬁﬂ’\]%ﬁé o A
BAHERSIMAELRNHERTR X
ERBRBRELT PInEn T CELRERREEH

NERRERET)  RAGHMEEMESELE
RIS (S XL B E B AR ROER o

published “Setting and Reinforcing Tone at the Top to Achieve Quality
Audits”, which highlights the significance of leadership in audit firms in
establishing and maintaining a tone that encourages ethical behaviour,
integrity, and a commitment to high-quality audits.

BlEFHEMSZEEEARE - BRIMTE RIS
FIE TYELS » 20244 - ﬁzﬂ“ﬂéﬁi&é{% . Lm”ﬂ

B EEeNBRZEMBTSBERESH &
NESBRTERERIREAEETHAE ﬂﬁéﬂ'ﬁ#&
EEMFTHAR - IRETTE)NE R AR F B T I 3R
HIZEATE & o

To keep stakeholders well-informed about governance standards, we have
established regular training sessions and workshops. In 2024, we hosted
several roundtable discussions with investors, members of audit committees,
and auditors of listed companies on audit quality and climate-integrated
audits in Hong Kong. A report was published summarising key insights from
the discussion and issuing a compelling three-pronged call to action for
stakeholders to advance the quality of financial reporting and audit.

EUREEEMEEITZEGNERENE  F
EEEHRSREEAEEFNEAE

These initiatives aim to educate and empower audit committee members
and stakeholders, reinforcing their role in promoting transparency and
accountability within their organisations.
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The AFRC is committed to enhancing auditing integrity and equipping
stakeholders with the knowledge and tools to uphold high standards of
governance.

Y
7N

AIFRC =8

e—

AIFRC =& p ;
i AIFRC & i
Policy, Registration and Oversight 27 June 2024 ¥

Analysis of Listed ded from

Setting and Reinforcing Tone at the Top to
Achieve Quality Audits

1. Introduction

Trading Due to Delay of Prellmlnary Annual

Results Announcement Roundtable Discussion on Audit Quality

and Climate-integrated Audits in Hong
Kong

53uly 2024

Policy, Registration and Oversight IJune 2024

What is tone at the top

11 Tone at the top refers to the ethical and quality-focused culture and
behaviour set and reinforced by an audit firm's leadership - including its
Chairperson, Managing Partners and Engagement Partners. It permeates
throughout the whole organisation and s practiced uniformly by all its staff.
Tone at the top is fundamental to promoting high-quality audits.

12, The importance of tone at the top is elaborated in both the international
and local context. The International Auditing and Assurance Standards
Board (IAASB) specifies that the audit firm's leadership has a crucial role in
promoting a culture guided by professionalism through appropriate tone
at the top. Further, the firm's leadership must emphasise audit quality and
protecting the public interest, and consistently communicate expectations
to reinforce ethical behaviours.!

13, The Hong Kong Standard on Quality Management 1 (HKSQM 1) s equally
clear: the audit firm's | for quality,
and they should demonstrate a commitment to quality through their
actions and behaviours. HKSQM 1 also requires firms to establish a quality-
oriented culture ~ through . training and
development, performance evaluation, and accountability measures.?

Deficiencies identified in the AFRC's inspection findings

14.  Despite repeated emphasis, the AFRC has observed that Hong Kong audit
firms®have not consistently and effectively demonstrated tone at the top.
Referring to the AFRC's 2022 Annual Inspection Report, common causes of

Ir deficiencies in audit quality identified include: (i) insufficient reviews by

engagement partners; (ii) a lack of professional scepticism; and (i)

J/ J

AFRC publishes various materials to enhance the governance standards of stakeholders.

S BHRTRETIYARTHHNEREAKFE -
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HIGHLIGHTS
TYEER,

Development &

We are dedicated to advancing the accounting profession through education,
training, and professional development. We collaborate with educational
institutions to align curricula with industry needs. By promoting innovation in
accounting practices and technologies, we equip professionals to adapt to a
rapidly changing environment.

Maintaining close and timely commmunication with various stakeholder groups
has always been central to the AFRC’s efforts to gain a comprehensive
understanding of the market landscape.

During the reporting period, we actively engaged with stakeholders through
54 meetings, seminars, events, and conferences. In April 2024, we met with
larger-sized accounting firms, the HKICPA, and a number of accounting
associations to discuss the sustainable development of the accounting
profession. These interactions fostered open and constructive dialogues with
members of the accounting profession, allowing us to gain valuable insights
into their perspectives and the challenges they encounter. This feedback is
instrumental in shaping the AFRC’s future policies and regulatory initiatives,
ensuring they are aligned with the needs of the profession and conducive to
its sustainable development.

BABEBHE - Bl REXERESGTE
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Accounting and Financial
Reporting Council
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of the profession through meetings with

Briefings to enhance the compliance
culture within audit firms.

BRMME RIS ENEBHANARIL

20
Firm's
SQM & ACMI
inspected,
8
(CatB)

industry bodies.
FREAEFABSE T E B R A 8

Promoting the sustainable development
R -
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Our Chairman, CEO, and other staff members were invited to participate in
various conferences, representing the AFRC and sharing our views with a
wider audience. These speaking engagements not only enhance our visibility
but also reinforce our commitment to transparency and collaboration within
the industry. For example, in January 2025, our CEO moderated a panel
discussion titled “Setting Global Milestones in Sustainability” at the Asian
Financial Forum (AFF), highlighting Hong Kong’s adoption of ISSB standards
and emphasising the AFRC’s commitment to developing recommendations
for a regulatory framework for sustainability assurance in Hong Kong, set for
public consultation this year.

Confere

7
14th Biennial
Corporate Governance

Alongside our engagement efforts, we published 39 press releases and
statements. These communications addressed a range of important topics,
including updates on regulatory changes, insights into our ongoing initiatives,
disciplinary actions, and our commitment to enhancing audit quality and
professional standards. By keeping both the profession and the public
informed, we aim to promote transparency and build trust in the regulatory
framework governing the accounting profession in Hong Kong.
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HIGHLIGHTS
TYEER,

We have periodically released reports and guidelines that significantly enhance
the body of knowledge available to professionals in the field. These reports
include the Annual Inspection Report, Audit Focus, Inspection Insights, and
the Annual Investigation and Compliance Report, all of which provide readers
with summaries of the AFRC's initiatives and work.

To make our publications more reader friendly, we have incorporated
infographics to present our insights in concise and engaging formats. For
example, we developed a two-page infographic for our recent publication,
“Checkpoint — Strengthening Auditors’ Reporting on Licensed Corporations,”
which addresses ongoing audit quality concerns and prompts Licensed
Corporation (LC) auditors to consider key trends and recommendations.

~ CHECKPOINT - REMINDERS
FOR AUDITORS REPORTING ON

LICENSED X
CORPORATIONS

@ 2024 /NSPECTION
, - C
89%

LC engagements
inspected:

2023 Annual Inspection Report
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Through these concerted efforts, the AFRC not only strengthens its
relationships with stakeholders but also reinforces its role as a proactive and
responsive regulator dedicated to the growth and integrity of the accounting
profession.
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In our ongoing commitment to enhance transparency and engagement and
deliver timely information to both industry stakeholders and the public, we
have increasingly adopted digital tools and social media platforms, specifically
LinkedIn, YouTube, and WeChat, to better explain our work and provide
updates. Consequently, we have significantly enhanced our production of
interactive content, creating a variety of informative posts and engaging
videos for both the public and the profession delivered through different social
media channels to widen our reach.

In December 2024, we launched our official WeChat account to better
connect with and engage accounting professionals in Mainland China. This
initiative aims to broaden our communication channels and ensure that
accounting professionals, industry stakeholders, and firms are kept informed
of our regulatory updates and initiatives.

By leveraging WeChat’s extensive user base, we engage directly with the
accounting community, providing timely information on our developments
and interactive resources. Our content includes insightful articles, interactive
posts, and multimedia updates focused on improving audit quality and
advancing professional standards.

HIGHLIGHTS
TEEZ

ABEBRASHERNBEENER  WHER
BRERABRERKEN  AREBEGHEBE
BT ARERZIEEF S (BiELinkedIn » YouTube
KAUE) - LA EM R MM TIE R M & E)
BE o BPIAIREN T EBRNBTHRE - BBTE
MREEREENE T L EME X R BB
BMENBRERME  WMENEEHE -

2024F 12 - ARIERMLE H USRS + SN
RENMEHEEALTHBERS) - WREER
BEBRRE  WREHZEALT  ERBFHER
SETANE S ATRE R E BN B ESE 3T M BUR
i o

BREMERARPE  RMEXEGHLEE
B RESHERDEREHER - ATRER
EXE  BEPMXRZHEEEN  SHEKRERT
FTERREEERITE -

§%§'JME AFRC < 1
Bt RMBERRB Accounting and Fina... &
HEEE

ERRITRMBILRA (RURE) 2REEERITZ WML
BENME. RUMEBIEISEERITL, BEIEREE, ...

CRUEIRS AR (L ERCS

XE RH

BERWRE AFRC 2

IEEE

@
N
©
-
mu
O]
13

AFRC £ /%5 HIBARR B SEAM R K #T&

AFRC E/%5 BIAR K BRI RH SRR,
AFRC ERH @RS MBS LNPRE. ABHH
SRUOER 5

2 R SICHRE A 1R 2025-2027
FRBER

AMBRBRIHTUATERS A F
RIf <

=M BRRAFEILR, EiTmnE

BEATE

EUBTREREERAINERREL
BT S L RFRIEH

2MBTREHEEEFELRBEZENMIIS
ERZ®HA2A6R, RITRMSTRBITREHMEZ

BATENE BREH FAmEE

]

AFRC provides insights and guidelines on its WeChat account to the accounting profession in Mainland China.

SURNMERARREREN R —RINORARNES - BREEAMEFER -

Accounting and Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2024-25 25
SR BERR 2024-25F 1K



26

HIGHLIGHTS
TYEER,

One key initiative is our new short video series, “AFRC Connect,” designed
to promote audit quality and advance professional excellence within the
accounting profession.

The inaugural episode, which highlights the importance of risk assessment in
audits, has been positively received by the profession, particularly SMPs. The
use of simple language and clear presentation have made complex concepts
easier to understand, thereby resonating with industry professionals while
also demystifying our work for the public. By making our functions more
accessible, we enable a wider audience to understand the vital role we play in
the accounting profession.

B RMBERR AFRC mueipe e gemmm o

Watch on (8 YouTube
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Our efforts have led to improved engagement with our audiences. The
number of LinkedIn followers increased from 3,157 to 5,607, up by 2,450
(78%). Our 55 content posts generated a total of 178,508 impressions and
2,590 reactions, indicating growing interest in our regulatory work. The
number of our YouTube subscribers grew from 182 to 580, up by 398 (219%).
We published the first episode of AFRC Connect and a highlight video of
the RRF event, which collectively garnered 13,100 views and a total watch
time of 375.6 hours. Our WeChat has attracted 269 followers, achieved 214
shares, and received 1,916 views.

This growth illustrates our commitment to fostering a well-informed
community and reinforces the importance of delivering practical and credible
information to enhance the standards of the accounting profession.
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In response to the increasing importance of sustainability and climate
reporting in Hong Kong, the AFRC has been actively involved in several ESG
initiatives.

Since becoming a member of the Green and Sustainable Finance Cross
Agency Steering Group (CASG) in January 2024, we have been actively
involved in driving the development of sustainability assurance in Hong Kong.

In December 2024, the Hong Kong SAR Government issued a roadmap for
large listed entities and large financial institutions to prepare sustainability
reports using the ISSB Standards by 2028. In the following month, the AFRC
published a study on Market Readiness for Sustainability Reporting and
Assurance in Hong Kong and shared key observations with the public. We
will conduct a public consultation this year on the proposed local regulatory
framework for sustainability assurance. Additionally, the Steering Group
identified three key priorities for this year to foster the growth of sustainable
finance in Hong Kong. They include developing a comprehensive sustainability
disclosure ecosystem, reinforcing Hong Kong'’s role as a leading sustainable
and transition finance hub; and harnessing data and technology to facilitate
sustainability reporting and promote sustainable financing activities. The
AFRC supports these initiatives, as they will enhance the credibility and
confidence in organisations’ sustainability practices and reporting.

We are collaborating with CASG members and stakeholders to develop a
regulatory regime and clear standards for sustainability assurance. This effort
aims to support the development of the ecosystem in Hong Kong, bolstering
Hong Kong’s position as a leading sustainable finance hub.

To adapt to evolving business demands, the accounting sector is proactively
enhancing its expertise in Web3 and financial technology (FinTech). The AFRC
closely monitors industry trends and collaborates with professional bodies
and stakeholders to support initiatives aimed at talent development.

In March 2025, we attended a meeting of the Legislative Council’s
Subcommittee and discussed the development of Web3 and virtual assets.
Together with the FSTB, we addressed inquiries from legislators regarding the
cultivation of Web3 and FinTech talent within the accounting profession.

Al is also transforming accounting and auditing practices. The AFRC
partners with academic institutions to offer seminars, training, and industry
publications. These initiatives are designed to empower accounting
professionals, particularly those from SMPs, to improve efficiency and remain
competitive in an increasingly digital environment.
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HIGHLIGHTS
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Organisational Effectiveness #4851 5E

To enhance our own organisational effectiveness, we focus on improving
internal processes and stakeholder engagement. Our initiatives include
implementing performance metrics to evaluate our regulatory impact,
streamlining operations for greater efficiency, and leveraging technology
for better data management. We prioritise open communication with
stakeholders through regular consultations and feedback mechanisms,
ensuring that our strategies align with the needs of the profession and the
public.

Driving Efficient Processes Through Technology

To meet the AFRC’s operational needs, we are developing a case
management system to facilitate collaboration and information sharing in a
secure environment, as well as to leverage data and technology within our
regulatory processes.

The case management system aims to improve case tracking and reporting in
enforcement actions. Since its initial deployment during the reporting period,
the system has optimised enforcement workflows and provided data insights,
improving operational efficiency and decision-making. Looking ahead, we
will continue to adopt and integrate emerging technologies to drive long-term
improvements in the efficiency and effectiveness of our enforcement actions.

Reallocating Resources to Address Emerging Needs

We have continually reallocated resources to address emerging market needs
while maintaining a keen awareness of industry trends. For example, with
Hong Kong’s Stablecoins Bill having its first reading in December 2024, we
have actively monitored developments to identify potential opportunities for
accountants.

Efforts are also underway to upskill relevant staff and redeploy them in sectors
such as technology and virtual assets. This proactive approach ensures that
our team is well-equipped to navigate the evolving landscape and provide
valuable insights to stakeholders.
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The Inaugural Regional Regulatory Forum

REGULATORY
FORUM 2024

Accounting and Financial
Reporting Council
BHEMBERR

AI-RC \ REGIONAL :
3 (2,

In recent years, the profession has navigated significant regulatory changes
and challenges, highlighting the need for more collaboration and dialogue.
This presented an opportunity to organise an event that would enhance the
profile of the AFRC and highlight our strategic role, while presenting the value
of the auditing and accounting profession to the broader community and its
contributions to the capital market.

With the support from the Hong Kong SAR Government, we successfully
hosted the inaugural Regional Regulatory Forum (RRF) for the accounting
and audit profession in Hong Kong last year on 2 December 2024. Over
370 participants attended the event, including international, Mainland
China, and local stakeholders such as accounting and financial regulators,
law enforcement agencies, global chairs of international network firms,
professional bodies, practitioners, investors, and senior business leaders.
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HIGHLIGHTS
TYEER,

With the theme “Transforming Regulation, Governance and
Development for a Resilient and Sustainable Future”, the RRF featured
five key panels where local and international subject matter experts provided
insights into critical issues impacting the profession. Topics included policy,
regulatory, and governance frameworks, global coordination of standards,
technological disruption, sustainability reporting and assurance, and talent
management strategies for futureproofing the audit profession.

This one-and-a-half-day event featured a main forum, an appreciation dinner,
and a half-day closed-door regulatory roundtable session.

of the HKSAR, shares his insights
at the RRF’s opening speech.
BB BB R A RERAOR S AR
RFFARIE FEE D ZRR -

(1, Fcuuony
¥ FORUM 2024

AFRC |\ sow

Ms Guo Tingting, Vice Minister of the Ministry of Finance
of the PRC, delivers a speech at the RRF.
FEE AR AT IR E R R R Z 515 22 TR R BE -
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HIGHLIGHTS
TEEZ

The opening ceremony of the Forum was presided by Dr Kelvin Wong, former 5% 8142 th & 81 /5 5 1 /5 & K40 18 - Bl
Chairman of the AFRC, who provided the opening remarks, Mr Paul Chan, & » 3 82 &5 15 [ BT B B B B R BR OR S8 A4
Financial Secretary of the Hong Kong SAR Government, Ms Guo Tingting, Vice ¥ AREMBE Y BRI B EBEELZ L - BF
Minister of Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China, Ms Salina REKREKREHEWMER (IR ER) BELL
Yan, Permanent Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury (Financial £ @ ARS8 BITHEEBREBLZ T HEFE -
Services) and Ms Janey Lai, CEO of the AFRC.

Former Chairman of the International Accounting Standards Board Sir David Bl & =+ # 8132 = € B 3 /& Sir David Tweedie®
Tweedie, renowned for his contributions in significantly advancing the global ~ XFE X & - thIAEZ 2 e sHERBR
convergence of accounting standards, delivered the luncheon keynote address. BEIE EME S » MmERER R EEHELE
The Guest of Honour for the Forum dinner was Mr Christopher Hui, Secretary /BRI ETEAEFIEEE -

for Financial Services and the Treasury.

The RRF brings together over 370 international,
Mainland and local participants to exchange views
on promoting market development and growth.
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Exploring the Evolution of Corporate Reporting:
From Past Experience to Future Innovations
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The following day’s Regulatory Roundtable session was a high-level meeting
attended by 14 representatives from eight jurisdictions, including the chairs
of the International Forum of Independent Audit Regulators (IFIAR) and the
Committee of European Auditing Oversight Bodies (CEAOB).

During this session, we engaged in open dialogues concerning a variety of
regulatory issues and challenges. They included inspection methodologies
and ratings, enforcement actions, audit fees, talent shortages, capacity
building, sustainability, and technology adoption. Participants shared
practices and insights, fostering a deeper understanding of the pressing
matters facing the audit profession today.

RABRTHEETRReRE SaERTE &
%TK@AMT&E%EMMM&%mﬁ B
BUPRJE  2E AT B B E R 1B (IFIAR) M BUMNEAT B

EtIEZEE (CEAOB) )X /E -

g LERMAMZIAEEHE BB RFIEBRN -

B HEERE AR NETAES ﬂi
ﬁﬁ\%ﬁE%\AﬁbﬁH%\AﬁL-

BERRE  URRRER- - #2e ﬁ?%ﬁﬁ?
HRER - RMCEBEA XA E B IR o

Representatives from eight jurisdictions in Europe, Mainland China, Japan, and

Southeast Asia attended the Regulatory Roundtable.

KEEM -

Enhancing Onsite and Post-forum Experience

A mobile-friendly webpage was created to improve the conference experience
for our participants. Guests could access the page to view the agenda and
speaker biographies, participate in polls during panel discussions, and submit
questions. After the event, attendees could continue to access the webpage
to view and download event photos and forum highlights, thereby maintaining
post-event interest and excitement.
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AAFRC Regional Regulatory Forum
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2 December, 2024, Hong Kong
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A Creative Way to Share Collective Wisdom AELXRBEEES

Digital illustrations were created on-site to vividly encapsulate the essence of K FIfEIRBZAIERISEE - 42 2WRIBEBE
the panel discussions from the RRF, capturing key takeaways, quotes, and s HIIEEE @ LA E ORI ED - B AR N
summaries from the panel speakers. These visual narratives and insights were ~ ##HE - ZfIEBHETIEEF A D ZTELREM
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Fostering Collaboration and Sharing Insights through the FBRRFEESIEL SRR
RRF

Hong Kong.
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On 2 December 2024, the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council (AFRC)
hosted the Regional Regulatory Forum (RRF) in Hong Kong.
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The RRF generated substantial engagement across various platforms, RwmEBESZETAHESESERT - K
particularly on LinkedIn, where numerous firms, professional bodies, and ~ Linkedin®) B )L 28 —RZ & +Eﬂi$ﬁ%ﬁﬁ
speakers shared our posts. This collective effort resulted in a total of 10,961 EXERLBEEIYEERMANML - E=F
impressions for the three LinkedIn posts and 3,700 impressions for our  LinkedIn®i X R5H1#1$10,961/X &R * YouTubets
YouTube highlight video, reflecting the heightened interest and involvement ~ E& 7 EEX{S3,700REIE & » Jo0 REAE TR
from the accounting community. HITERR 2L o
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In addition to the social media buzz, the RRF received approximately 20
media mentions from major outlets. This extensive media coverage not only
amplified our message but also underscored the significance of the forum in
addressing key issues within the accounting profession.
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The RRF served as our inaugural post on our official WeChat account, which
was launched in December 2024. This strategic move marks the beginning of
our efforts to actively engage with our audience in Mainland China. By utilising
WeChat, a platform widely used by professionals in the region, we aim to
foster a dynamic dialogue and keep our stakeholders informed about our
initiatives and developments.

Overall, the interactions and media coverage generated around the RRF
reflect our commitment to promoting transparency and collaboration within
the accounting profession. As we continue to build on this momentum,
we are excited to engage further with our audience and drive meaningful
conversations that contribute to the sustainable development of the
profession.

In response to the overwhelming positive feedback from the profession,
the RRF will return at the end of 2025 to rejuvenate and further advance
productive conversations and collaborations within the profession locally,
regionally and globally.

For more details about our 2024 RRF, please scan here to access our
dedicated webpage.
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Governance Structure

ERE

Advisory Committee'
BHEEE

ZEEmE’

Process Review Pani

EFERZESE’
Sustainability and
Climate Action
Task Force?
AEEERR
FURTTEN T{F/N4E2
Footnotes:
1. Established under the Accounting and Financial Reporting

Council Ordinance (AFRCO) and their members are
appointed by Government Officials designated under the
AFRCO.

2. Established by and their members appointed by the Board.

3. Established in 2008 by the Chief Executive of HKSAR (CE)
and its members are appointed by the CE to enhance the
accountability of the AFRC.

4. Established under the AFRCO and their members are
appointed from amongst the members of the Financial
Reporting Review Panel.
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2. HMEBEERRY KEHEFEREME-
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4. REBECEFRMBERBGOD KL - KRB HERR
ZEETE® ©

Committees?
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Committee
ERREY
Investigation
and Compliance
Committee
WEZEE

Policy, Registration
and Oversight
Committee
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
HERBER

Financial Reporting
Review Panel’

MEESRAESE

Financial Reporting
Review Committee*

BBEREHESE!

Discipline
Committee
BEESEEE

Finance and Corporate
Affairs Committee
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Compensation and
Nomination Committee
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The Board
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Board Chairman Board Members
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n Dr David Sun, GBS, JP 8 Ms Miranda Kwok, JP B Mr Keith Lui
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B Dr Peter Wan, MH B Mr Francis Siu
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a Mr Eugene Fung, SC, JP Mr Andrew Fung, SBS, JP
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AFEw+ KEw+
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B Prof Phyllis Mo @ Mr Roger Best, MH, JP @ Mr Stephen Lee
DERHE BomELE o KBBE  KAFHL ZHBLLE

a Ms Deborah Leung m Ms Rosita Lee m Mr Edward Yuen
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m Mr Stephen Hung, MH m Dr James C Lin Mr Johnny Chan
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(B) Ms Janey Lai (CEO)
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Profile of Board Members
The Board

The Board is the highest governing body of the AFRC. Currently, the Board
comprises 17 members including the Chairman who is non-executive, 15

non-executive directors and 1 executive director.

ESRRE[E

EER
EFRERYRBNRBEANME - BARI7ER
B - RIEEE GETT) - 15EIEMTEF R
EIITES -

Dr David Sun, GBS, JP
From 2025-01-01; Current appointment expires on 2026-12-31

BREEEL  @XFEE > AF#t
F32025-01-01%8 ; {EHAAE#2026-12-31 /5

Current professional affiliations:
- Fellow member, HKICPA
- Member, American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA)

Past offices and public service:

- Director of Audit, Audit Commission of the Hong Kong SAR Government

- President, HKICPA

—  Chairman and Managing Partner, Emst & Young Greater China and the

Far East
—  Member, Ernst & Young Global Executive Board
—  Chairman, Council at City University of Hong Kong

- Chairman, Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Advisory Committee

- Member, Exchange Fund Advisory Committee, HKMA
- Non-Executive Director, Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation

- Non-Executive Director, Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority

(MPFA)

—  Treasurer, Hong Kong University of Science and Technology (HKUST)

- Treasurer, Hong Kong Metropolitan University
- Member, Listing Committee, Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (SEHK)

- Member, Process Review Panel, Securities and Futures Commission

(SFC)
- Member, Hong Kong Housing Authority

Members K&

Mr Roger Best, MH, JP
From 2019-10-01; Current appointment expires on 2025-09-30

B2 SR -
- BHEARERER

- XEEMEFEnEEE

1o

A

BEMBRAM :
- EEHAORERAEIEER
- eH@LRws

- RRRPERLERBREIFEREEAGBA

- RKERHRRITEREEKE

- BAERTABERESXE

- RHMEAEEHEEAEEeLR

- SERIMNEESHAZESZLZE

- BARBESFBRARFMITES

- BHMAESFEEER(EER)IFNTE
S

-  BANMRAEAE

- AEHEAREAE

- BABAERSMERM LHEEERE

- RBESEFERZBESZE

- BEFEZEBe(FZ9)Z8

i3

POMEL A REERE - KFEHL
F2019-10-01#8 ; EHAAE#22025-09-30/E 7

Past offices and public service:

- Partner, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

- President, HKICPA

—  Chairman, Financial Reporting Standards Committee, HKICPA
- Member, IFRS Advisory Council
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Mr Johnny Chan
From 2024-10-01; Current appointment expires on 2026-09-30

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
HBER

Current offices and public service:

—  Chief Investment Officer, Hong Kong Cyberport Management
Company's Macro Fund

- President, HK Venture Capital and Private Equity Association (HKVCA)

—  Chairmanship, Global Venture Capital Congress (GVCC)

- Member, Market Misconduct Tribunal

- Member, the Securities and Futures Appeals Tribunal

Past offices and public service:

- Deputy Chairman, Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong (HKEx)

- Member, Judging Panel of the HKEx Research Funding Scheme of the
HKEx Foundation

—  Chief Investment Officer, Softech Investment Management, the manager
of the Hong Kong Government Applied Research Fund

Mr Andrew Fung, SBS, JP
From 2023-10-01; Current appointment expires on 2025-09-30

Eﬁ;iaaﬁ%ét

F32024-10-01#8 ; {EHAE#22026-09-30/ 7
BEBEROR

- BAMGEEREANEHEESEERER

EFRRAEXLNBREMESR
PHREIFRERGEIR
MSRETTRELREKE
EFLMESEE LRERENKE

BEBBR QR

AERMARGMEMEESRER
EBRGECGIBERHMRE B
5=/ MR B
EEIURFE R 7T A & 458 Softech Investment
Management & 1% & 18 &2

BEREE  REFEE > KF#+
F2023-10-01#8 ; {THAE#22025-09-30/E 7

Current offices:

- Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer, Henderson Land
Development Company Limited

- Non-Executive Director, Hong Kong and China Gas Limited

- Professor, Practice (Finance), School of Accounting and Finance of the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University

—  Adjunct Professor, Hang Seng University of Hong Kong

Past offices:
- Executive Director and Head, Global Banking & Markets, Hang Seng
Bank Limited

Mr Eugene Fung, SC, JP
From 2018-12-01; Current appointment expires on 2025-09-30

RS

EEEMEERATDNMTEEREFNT

4 BE

e

EETREERERARFENITES
ERBTASSH L RMEREERERRE
(&)

EBEAERNBRIHF

BAER

BARTHITEERERMEREATIEE
BEE

BEBELE - ERAEM APt
F2018-12-01#8 ; {EHAE#2025-09-30/ 7

Current offices, public service and professional affiliations:

- Barrister

- Recorder, High Court

- Chairman, Process Review Panel, Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority

- Chairman, Process Review Panel, Insurance Authority

- Chairman, Air Transport Licensing Authority

Past public service:
- Member, Law Reform Commission of Hong Kong

BREE ARRTEcEXER

BIRARAD
BEERSREAE
BeREFERZEELR

RREEEREFERZESIE
ZERRREE

BEAR :

BRERNEERBEREER
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Mr Stephen Hung, MH
From 2018-12-01; Current appointment expires on 2025-09-30

BEEEhL  REFHE
F2018-12-01#8 ; {EHAE#2025-09-30/ 7

Current offices, public service and professional affiliations:

—  Chairman, Law Society’s Legal Education Committee

- Chairman, Criminal Law and Procedure Committee

- Chairman, Board of Review, Film Censorship

—  Vice-Chairman, Professional Services Advancement Support Scheme
Vetting Committee

- Disciplinary Tribunal Convenor, Financial Dispute Resolution Centre

- Member, Law Reform Commission

- Member, Duty Lawyer Service Council

- Member, Standing Committee, Judicial Salaries and Conditions of
Service

- Member, Securities and Futures Appeals Tribunal

— Adjunct Professor, Law, Hong Kong Shue Yan University

— Adjunct Professor, Law School, Beijing Normal University

- Visiting Professor, Faculty of International Law, China University of
Political Science and Law, Beijing

- Part-time tutor, Faculty of Law, University of Hong Kong

Past public service:
- President, Law Society of Hong Kong

Ms Miranda Kwok, JP
From 2018-12-01; Current appointment expires on 2025-09-30

BERE  ABRABESXEHE
ELT i@ﬂﬁ§AEIF

-  FEERFREFZEESE

- %V£AA%%WQIﬁ

- BERBHERTEZESEERE

- SRAOARDOLRERAT

- BEEENEZEENE

- EBEFNRBEEEKE

-  RDEABRFHENMBRBRUHEEBZESKE

- BERHEEHLRFESREKRE

- BEAECARERREHX

- AEREEAEEZ R RBER

- TEBIEZASZEBEARR T EHIR

- ABARE
BB Em

FRBRERERBRMNERER
BELE :
- ErAgmEgngk

WIF 2+ KFME
F32018-12-0178 : {EH3#§742025-09-30/E

Current offices and public service:

- Non-Executive Director, China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation
Limited

—  Member, Process Review Panel, SFC

—  Member, Council of City University of Hong Kong

- Member, Risk Management Committee, HKEX

- Member, Standing Committee on Judicial Salaries and Condition of
Service
- Honorary Advisory Vice President, Hong Kong Institute of Bankers

Ms Janey Lai
From 2024-04-09; Current appointment expires on 2027-04-08

BRBER AR

- hEEERET@EMNROERARERTE
=

- BEeEFERZESER

- BEEEmASEREEKE

- BEERSLEEMAERARGERM ERE
BEZEENE

-  RDEABFHENMRBHGUHEBZESERE
- EBERTESKERHAIER

BREZL
F2024-04-09#E : {EHA# 14 2027-04-08/E i

Current offices and professional affiliations:
- CEO and Executive Director, AFRC

- Fellow member, HKICPA

- Fellow member, CPA Australia

Past offices and public service:
- Partner, two leading international accounting firms
- Member, Qualification and Examination Board, HKICPA
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Ms Rosita Lee 2w 2z =
From 2018-12-01; Current appointment expires on 2025-09-30 F12018-12-01#8 : {EHA% 74 2025-09-30/&E %
Current offices and public service: REEBERE AR
-  Director and Chief Executive Officer, Hang Seng Investment - [EAKREERERARESFIITHAE
Management Limited
- Director, Hang Seng Qianhai Fund Management Company Limited - [EBAEECERBERAFES
- Chairman, Arbitration Panel, Securities and Futures (Leveraged Foreign -  (EBEA5RHIE (ERERINEZ ) ((F£) 81
Exchange Trading) (Arbitration) Rules, SFC HEEEEERE
- Member, Legal Aid Services Coundil - EEERDRBRKE
- Member, Products Advisory Committee, SFC - BEIENFKHRNEZEEgNKE
- Member, Beta Gamma Sigma (HKUST Chapter) - Beta Gamma Sigma& AR AL EE 8
- Member, Hong Kong Academy of Finance - BEcRZERe8
Mr Stephen Lee THERE
From 2019-10-01; Current appointment expires on 2025-09-30 F12019-10-0138 : {EHA#% 74 2025-09-30/E )%
Current offices, public service and professional affiliations: RERE  ARRAIE2SXEE
- Independent Non-Executive Director of two companies - WRATKBELIFNTES
- Fellow member, HKICPA - BHHIAEEREGE
- Fellow member, Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and -  EEEMEBIISTEMASEFEE
Wales (ICAEW)
- Associate member, Institute of Directors - EFgEees Eé )
- Associate member, Institute of Internal Auditors - REEZEBEEE 5 2 3@
4t
Past offices and public service: BARKE AR -
- Partner-in-Charge, Risk Consulting practices in respect of Hong Kong, -  EZHEES - REIRH &I AR R RS
Mainland and the Asia Pacific Region, KPMG EBHEEARA
-  Independent Non-Executive Director of listed companies - ZRAFBMIENTEE
- Independent Non-Executive Director of statutory public bodies - AEREWRERNIENTES
- President, The Institute of Internal Auditors Hong Kong -  BERIEzmZEee
Ms Deborah Leung BTt
From 2024-10-01; Current appointment expires on 2026-09-30 F12024-10-018; {EHA#% 72 2026-09-30/E M
Current professional affiliations: RRETBESX£EE8E :
- Fellow member of CPA Australia - BRNEHEAgBERTMEED
- Membership in HKICPA and CPA Canada - BEEAGNNMEREGHFEEGIRIAEK
8
Past offices and public service: BEBERE AR
- Vice Chair, International and Executive General Manager International, - SBM&FHAIA SRR IREIEE L EEHITE
CPA Australia g
-  Advisory board and committee member for universities in Hong Kong -  &EEMZEABHHFRAEEEKE

and Australia
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Dr James C Lin
From 2023-10-01; Current appointment expires on 2025-09-30

MIRFE L
F32023-10-01#8 ; {EHAE#2025-09-30/ 7

Current offices and public service:

—  Senior Partner, Davis Polk & Wardwell

- Director, Hong Kong Investment Corporation

- Member, Exchange Fund Advisory Committee, Hong Kong Monetary
Authority

- Member, Process Review Panel, Insurance Authority

- Member, Process Review Panel, Regulation of Mandatory Provident
Fund Intermediaries

Past public service:

- Non-Executive Director, SFC

- Chairman, Investor Compensation Company Limited

- Member, SFC (HKEC Listing) Appeals Committee

- Member, Investor Compensation Fund Committee, SFC
- Member, Securities Compensation Fund Committee, SFC
- Member, Securities and Futures Appeals Tribunal

- Member, Appeal Panel (Housing)

Mr Keith Lui
From 2020-10-01; Current appointment expires on 2026-09-30

BRBER AR
EREMEBREEA

- BERAEEERAES

- FATREERINEESHARBEMNKE

0

A

- RBREEEREFEREZEEGKE
- BHNAEEFEHEEREFERZEENK

]

Eﬁ%ﬂ#%ﬂ TEE

BEREBEARARER
HEE @EERSM LM ERE
- ZEEREEREASZEGKE

BgKE
- némana‘ ﬁﬁﬂggigé\mﬁk

- BEKHAEEBLHREHEKE

- rHFEEEEREIKE

BRXEE
F12020-10-01 8 : {EH3#§742026-09-30/E W

Past offices and public service:

- Executive Director, Supervision of Markets Division, SFC

—  Chairman, Investor Compensation Fund Committee, SFC
- Chairman, Securities Compensation Fund Committee, SFC
- Member, Advisory Committee, SFC

- Member, Investment Committee, SFC

- Member, SFC (HKEC Listing) Committee, SFC

- Member, Statutory Risk Management Committee, HKEX
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Prof Phyllis Mo
From 2024-10-01; Current appointment expires on 2026-09-30
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RERHIR
F32024-10-01#8 ; {EHAE#22026-09-30/ 7

Current offices and public service

Professor and Head of the Department of Accountancy, The Hang Seng
University of Hong Kong

Independent Non-Executive Director of two listed companies in Hong
Kong

Member, Sustainability Assurance Advisory Panel, HKICPA

Member, Vetting Committee of the Trade and Industrial Organisation
Support Fund

Member, Vetting Committee of the Professional Services Advancement
Support Scheme

Specialist, Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic &
Vocational Qualifications

Past offices and public service

Professor of Accountancy, City University of Hong Kong

Professor and Head of the Department of Accountancy, Lingnan
University

Member, Auditing & Assurance Standards Committee, HKICPA
Member, Board of Review (Inland Revenue Ordinance, Hong Kong)

Mr Francis Siu
From 2019-10-01; Current appointment expires on 2025-09-30

NS R SN
EREBERZGHBRZRE R R

- MRBBLWRABELIFRNTES

- BB AETREEERMA

MERKER
- IE#BXEESTELZESZRER

o

ERETEIEZEEZ

- BEERRGwE

\

- BEBMEKBEERIEEX

BEBBKR DB
-  BEEWTWAREGREHR
- SEERBEEHBERUELAEE

BEIEREE
F2019-10-01#8 ; {EHAE#22025-09-30/E 7

Current offices and professional affiliations:

Independent Non-Executive Director of listed companies in Hong Kong
Fellow member, HKICPA
Fellow member, ICAEW

Past offices:

Partner, KPMG Hong Kong
Senior Partner, Shanghai Office, KPMG

Senior Partner, Beijing Office, KPMG

Senior Partner, Northern Region, KPMG China

BB RS EEEE
-  HBEBEBLTRAREMIFRTES
- Euﬂ'Eﬁi”A/\é &8

- RERERIRFEAMAEEREER

BAR

- EFEEBEBMEAARBA

- ESEERSHMEBHLEIMERER
A

-  ESEERGHMEBAILRS
BRBA

- EERERSHMEBMELEEEAEA

ERER
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Dr Peter Wan, MH
From 2019-10-01; Current appointment expires on 2025-09-30

FiOEE L - REHT
F32019-10-01#8 ; {EHAE#2025-09-30/ 7

Current public service and professional affiliations:

- Fellow member, HKICPA

- Fellow member, Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA)
- Fellow member, HKloD

Past offices and public service:

- Partner, PricewaterhouseCoopers

- Independent Non-executive Director of a number of listed companies
—  Stewardship positions of several NGOs and service organisations

Mr Edward Yuen
From 2021-10-01; Current appointment expires on 2025-09-30

AR TS SEE

- EHEASEREE

- BHeHMARARER
RE 8

- BEEFEEGEFEER

BEBBR OB

- BERBUKBEFEEHBMABA

- ZREMARBILIFRITES

- ZEFEBUTABM RIS EE R

BT EENE Se A
F2021-10-01#8 ; {EHAE#22025-09-30/E 7

Current public service and professional affiliations:
- Member, Antiquities Advisory Board

- Member, Securities and Futures Appeals Tribunal
—  Associate member, HKICPA

Past offices:
- Area Finance Director, Pepsi-cola International
- CFO, Hsin Chong Construction Company Ltd
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HEBER
Board =Y
Membership and attendance at Board meetings during the 12-month & %£202553831BM12@ B i - EERRE
period ended 31 March 2025 were as follows: REBdHERNT
Dr Kelvin Wong, SBS, JP (Chairman)' BERHEL  REFES  KAF@LEE)
Dr David Sun, GBS, JP (Chairman)? FREEELT  @RFEE - KFL(EEFE)?
Mr Roger Best, MH, JP BOMEAEE - REEE - KP4t
Mr Johnny Chan? PRE B ST
Mr Andrew Fung, SBS, JP RERSE  REFEE - KFEHT
Mr Eugene Fung, SC, JP IBIERBSTAE + BRAZAED - K4t
Mr Stephen Hung, MH REBIESAE - KEHE
Ms Miranda Kwok, JP Iy L+ - KAt
Ms Janey Lai (CEO)* FERBE L (7T
Ms Rosita Lee 23 2z =
Mr Stephen Lee THRBSLE
Ms Deborah Leung® Rl Lo
Dr James C Lin MRFIELT
Mr Keith Lui B EE
Prof Phyllis Mo? WA
Mr Francis Siu FREREAE
Dr Peter Wan, MH FIREBL  £EHE
Mr Edward Yuen B S A )
Number of meetings: 7 SRR 7 %% ;ﬂ”ﬂ
The average attendance rate was 94%. R FHAHEERIA% °3
1 Dr Kelvin Wong retired on 31 December 2024 from the Board upon the expiry of his ' BAMTELN2024F12 A31 B &8 B EE T HE R
term as the Chairman of the AFRC. RIE ©
2 Dr David Sun was appointed as the Chairman of the AFRC on 1 January 2025. 2 BEEBTN2025F1 A1ERERSHRERE °
3 Appointed on 1 October 2024. 3 TA2024F10 A1 BT ©
¢ Appointed on 9 April 2024. ¢ TR2024F4 FORBEET -
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Organisation Structure
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The Board

The Board, led by the Chairman who is appointed by the Chief Executive of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (CE of the HKSAR), oversees
the Management in discharging the functions of the AFRC efficiently and
effectively to protect the public interest.

Chief Executive Officer

The Chief Executive Officer, appointed by the CE of the HKSAR, leads the
staff in managing the operations of the AFRC to ensure that the organisation’s
statutory functions are performed effectively.

Departments
The operations of the AFRC are carried out by seven departments with clear
segregation of responsibilities.

Policy, Registration and Oversight Department

The Policy, Registration and Oversight Department (PRO) is responsible
for registration functions, including the issuance of Practising Certificates,
registration of firm names and firms, corporate practices, local auditors as
PIE auditors, and recognition of overseas auditors as PIE auditors. Under
the AFRCO, it oversees the performance of the HKICPA in respect of their
statutory functions specified in the AFRCO (Specified Functions). In addition,
the department also conducts policy research that is conducive to enhancing
the quality of financial reporting and audit quality, and publishes guidance on
governance and other issues where appropriate.

Inspection Department

The Inspection Department (ISP) is responsible for carrying out inspections
with the objectives of monitoring and promoting audit quality. An inspection
in relation to a practice unit focuses on how it conducted audit engagements
and on the effectiveness of its quality management system to determine
whether the applicable professional standards and legal and regulatory
requirements have been complied with.

An inspection in relation to compliance with anti-money laundering and
counter-terrorist financing requirements focuses on whether a practice unit
has complied with the Guidelines on Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-
Terrorist Financing for Professional Accountants (AML Guidelines) issued by
the HKICPA. The AML Guidelines form part of the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants.
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Investigation and Compliance Department

The Investigation and Compliance Department (INC) is responsible for
carrying out the investigation and enquiry functions of the AFRC. It may
initiate an investigation and/or enquiry based on complaints from the public,
whistleblower reports, referrals from other regulators, internal referrals arising
from inspections of auditors or the AFRC’s own financial statements review
programme.

Discipline Department

The Discipline Department (DIS) is responsible for carrying out the disciplinary
function of the AFRC. It will take appropriate and timely disciplinary actions in
cases of misconduct by imposing commensurate sanctions for the purposes
of deterrence, investor protection, maintaining market confidence in the
quality of financial reporting and audits, and upholding the standards of
conduct among regulatees.

Legal Department

The Legal Department (LEG) is responsible for providing legal advice to the
Board on all matters concerning the AFRC and for providing all departments
with vital legal support for the successful delivery of departmental initiatives
and the strategic development of the organisation as a whole.

Corporate and Public Affairs Department

The Corporate and Public Affairs Department (CPA) is responsible for
stakeholder engagement and managing the corporate communications
function, encompassing public and media relations, internal communications
and issues management. We engage with government bodies, stakeholders,
and the communities to provide a better understanding of our work and
deliver pertinent information to our audiences through various traditional and
digital channels.

Finance and Administration Department

The Finance and Administration Department (FNA) is responsible for
managing matters in relation to finance, budget, information technology,
human resources and general administration of the AFRC.
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Practice of Corporate Governance

Internal Controls
The AFRC maintains an effective internal control system that includes a
clear organisational structure, well-defined levels of authority, and proper
segregation of duties.

The AFRC regularly reviews all its policies and guidelines relating to
personnel administration, procurement, authorisation of transactions, and the
safeguarding of its assets.

Specific forms were completed by Board Members, committee members,
and staff in respect of each case to ensure conflicts had been declared and
identified. Once declared, all papers issued reflect any such conflicts.

Code of Conduct

Code of Conduct for Board Members

The Code of Conduct for Board Members sets out the basic standard of
conduct expected of all Board Members and the AFRC’s policy on matters
such as the acceptance of advantages, declarations of conflicts of interest,
confidentiality of information, misuse of information, and use of public funds
by Board Members in connection with their official duties. All Board Members
are required to adhere to the Code of Conduct.

Code of Conduct for Staff Members

The Code of Conduct for Staff Members is in line with the Code of Conduct
for Board Members and the latest ICAC sample codes, and explains relevant
matters in greater detail, in particular in relation to acceptance of advantages
by staff members.

AFRC staff members are required to adhere to our Code of Conduct when
carrying out any role on behalf of the AFRC. Our Code of Conduct specifies
standards to be followed in areas that may involve conflicts of interest,
confidentiality of information, personal investments, and data protection. This
includes the need for staff members to make regular declarations of their own
and their spouses’ investments in listed securities, and to notify any changes
in their portfolio.
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Communications with Stakeholders

The AFRC proactively communicates with stakeholders including the
accounting profession, our regulatory counterparts, and members of the
public.

We publish periodic regulatory reports, guidelines, market research, press
releases, and quarterly reports to keep them informed of key regulatory issues,
up-to-date findings, the progress of our work, and our latest developments.

We also foster close collaborations with professional bodies by organising
briefings and webinars and sharing latest publications and news. The AFRC
also communicates with stakeholders via the AFRC website (www.afrc.org.hk)
and social media channels.

Accountability and Audit

The AFRC is subject to a strict audit process. The AFRC’s annual budget
must be endorsed by the Board. The Financial Secretary then reviews and
approves the AFRC’s annual estimates of income and expenditure.

The financial statements of the AFRC are audited by the Government’s
Director of Audit; annual reports are submitted to the Financial Secretary
and tabled at the Legislative Council. The AFRC attends a meeting of the
Legislative Council Panel on Financial Affairs to present the annual budget.

Process Review Panel (PRP)

The AFRC has its work scrutinised by a PRP, the aim of which is to ensure
that individual cases have been dealt with consistently, and that all actions
and decisions taken are in line with internal procedures and guidelines. The
PRP issues an annual report containing the conclusions of its review, together
with suggestions for improvements, if any. Appointments to the PRP are
approved by the CE of the HKSAR.

Ombudsman
The AFRC is subject to indirect oversight by the Office of the Ombudsman
which has statutory powers to investigate alleged acts of maladministration.
The AFRC did not receive any enquiry from the Ombudsman during the
reporting period.
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Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The AFRC is dedicated to caring for our employees, community, and
environment. Through a series of year-long CSR initiatives, we strive to B2 FEHITHECEL S T3 RABKRAIE
create sustainable change and empower individuals to make a positive social ~ FI3FENE - MBS REFHAEFEZTLE - 8
impact. By harnessing the power of collective action and compassion, we — FE&EEITEEEIT 518 - HMIHIE 3|3 L & 8H
seek to inspire a ripple effect, encouraging everyone to join us in caring for & » FBARE OB HBEELRRER -

our community and the world together.
Our Goals KM EE

AEIFEHEYE  YRTEANBHFENE
ANERE  BELREREENES

1. Cultivating positive social impact: Supporting individuals and 1.
groups in need within our community to foster meaningful and enduring
transformations.

BEHRBUFEBR S| BREHBIRNOE
& R —RTEARER

2. Championing environmental sustainability: Leading initiatives 2.
that ensure the protection and preservation of our planet for future
generations.

3.  Promoting employee wellness: Prioritising the well-being of our 3. {BEETHOMEE : BRZT@FELS - &
employees by organising various wellness events to foster a healthier EEREAMAN TIERE
and more supportive work environment.

Fostering a collaborative culture: Strengthening connections 4.

between management and staff while encouraging cross-functional
collaboration through meaningful events that cultivate a vibrant,
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supportive workplace.
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Fostering a Collaborative and Healthy Team

The personal growth and professional development of our employees is one of
our key focuses. We provide training programmes and growth opportunities to
empower our team members with the necessary skills to navigate the dynamic
landscape with proficiency and confidence. Our training initiatives involve both
in-house sessions and external programmes. We also nurture a culture of
sharing, encouraging staff to learn from each other's experiences and insights.
Through our regular “Learn and Share” sessions, staff and external guests
exchange industry knowledge and perspectives.

In addition to supporting professional growth, we emphasise strong interpersonal
connections among our staff, encouraging teamwork and communication that
extend beyond departments. To further strengthen team unity, we organised
various team-building activities throughout the year, fostering collaboration and
strengthening relationships. Our annual dinner is a key event in our calendar,
bringing everyone together to celebrate achievements and reinforce our shared
values. In our dynamic and supportive work environment, success becomes a
shared journey guided by our core principles.

SRR EEER
BIMEARRAZEFRERMNZOERY
— o RPEESBEIE B RBRES - REK
RERENBHEERE  KTERSBEOR
SR DI EE B - RPN ERE
AERIERINFELEE - FREEEANHDZ
Xie - BAEHEREBHTE  REBTMRE
RERIMITENRRELRME -

BXFHEERESN  RARAZERRER T ZH
WEZBE - IREAPFINERRERER - &
E-SRABGRE S BMA2FERSREK
A AENETESFEEERE  BEBERAC
REE > ARAEGALRCRFNZOER
B o EEE7mE h BB THERIRH
BRI IER— AR BRI O R RIS EH K EIRIE -

Strengthening mutual trust among colleagues through various activities, thereby enhancing
seamless collaboration between departments.

BB TREEINRREZENELE -

Driving Towards a Sustainable Future
Throughout the year, we have made progress in our commitment to
sustainability, actively engaging our staff in promoting a sustainable lifestyle.

We have taken proactive measures to raise environmental awareness within
our workplace. To foster a culture of sustainability, we installed eco posters
throughout the office, serving as constant reminders for our team to adopt
more environmentally friendly practices. These posters emphasise the
importance of the 3Rs — Reduce, Reuse, and Recycle — and provide practical
tips for clean recycling. Additionally, we encouraged our staff to be mindful
of energy consumption by turning off lights when not in use, helping to save
electricity and reduce our overall carbon footprint.
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We also encourage our staff to support various eco-friendly initiatives
organised by our office property manager, Swire Properties. For instance,
we participated in their Red Packets Reuse and Recycling programme,
encouraging our team to contribute to a circular economy by reusing and
recycling festive materials. Such efforts reinforce our collective responsibility
toward sustainability.

HiEveryone!
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CSR - Earth Hour 2025
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The AFRC promotes environmental protection through a variety of initiatives.
SV RERSHEFEDRHERE

Giving Back to the Community
Our CSR commitment is reflected through our active support for various
charitable initiatives, bringing positive impact to our communities.

We proudly participated in the Community Chest's initiatives, including Green
Low Carbon Day, Dress Casual Day, and Skip Lunch Day. Through these
events, we raised a total of HK$15,070 in support of initiatives and individuals
in need. Our involvement not only provides financial support but also fosters a
sense of community and awareness among our staff.

In March, we celebrated International Women’s Day by creating a photo
collage of staff members to echo this year’s theme, #AccelerateAction. We also
gathered quotes from our staff regarding their perspectives on gender diversity
and women's empowerment, with the objective of inspiring others while also
drawing inspiration from their voices.
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In light of the tragic earthquake in Myanmar in late March, we encouraged our  ghifi‘m = A Nt E S8 - I EER B 4%
colleagues to support World Vision’s relief efforts to assist those in need during S REHIE TIE - EMXEREEBEY - R
this difficult time. We successfully raised HK$100,100 to provide survivors with — £5£2100,100/8 7T © AXRIBHEZESER  2FR
immediate and essential aid, including emergency food assistance, clean water, 7K * FREFEFTER - LR R LEZEETHEAN
shelter kits, hygiene supplies, and warm blankets. MNERIERE) o
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW

TEKEFRER

B

Policy, Registration and Oversight B - 51 & ES& 26

Our Work and Our Objectives

PRO conducts policy research that is conducive to enhancing financial
reporting and audit quality. We publish guidance on governance and other
issues, promoting the healthy development of the accounting profession.
We also regulate auditors through registration and licensing, protecting
public interests and maintaining high standards of professional conduct. Our
oversight of the HKICPA statutory functions further enhances the credibility of
the accounting profession, thus reinforcing Hong Kong’s position as a leading
international financial centre.

Our Progress and Achievements

Policy and Governance

Our objective is to promote the healthy development of the accounting
profession by encouraging positive changes in the market to enhance the
quality of financial reporting and audit. We start by researching policy issues
related to these areas, and turning our findings into practical guidance.
This is followed by sharing the information with stakeholders to clarify our
expectations and promote best practices.

Guiding Stakeholders to Foster High-quality Financial Reporting,
Audits, and Governance

This year, we issued six policy and governance publications aimed at guiding
the accounting profession to deliver high-quality financial reporting and audits,
promoting good governance, and developing the sustainability reporting and
assurance ecosystem.

Our publications serve as critical reminders for the profession to maintain
professional standards through effective audit documentation policies,
procedures, and controls. We encouraged audit firms to implement
robust measures for identifying and mitigating potential threats to auditor
independence. Additionally, we stressed the importance of setting and
reinforcing tone at the top to foster a culture of ethical behaviour, integrity,
and commitment to audit quality.

Also, we highlighted the importance of the role of auditors in addressing
current economic conditions and their impact on financial reporting for
Hong Kong-listed companies. We also provided insights into the market’s
readiness for sustainability reporting and assurance, emphasising the
need for stakeholders to exemplify transparency and accountability in their
sustainability reporting efforts.
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EEREFER

Policy and governance publications

BREERERSE

Guiding audit firms to deliver high-quality audits

EESMERMRMASERERN

The Importance of Audit Documentation Reminds auditors of key professional standards for maintaining audit documentation integrity

Integrity and highlights improving audit quality through robust documentation policies and controls

(RETEETTENEEN) REZEA A BETCHT RN E MR - W5 AR BA BN B O SRBURAIE
HlfEMIR A B E &

Setting and Reinforcing Tone at the Top to Emphasises the critical role of leadership in promoting ethical behaviours and audit quality,

Achieve Quality Audits offering strategies for audit firm leadership to establish and reinforce these principles

(BIRZEESEEAURRSEREN) RABEETRAEHESETANETERTANEEY - REAEHAMESERE

B AN DGR IS LE 77 AV AR RR

Safeguarding Auditor Independence: Concerns Highlights a concern about potential threats to auditor independence from procurement
Surrounding Procurement and Purchases from with audit clients and calls for procedures to identify and mitigate them

Audit Clients

(GERBEB LM AEFFFFRERERANE SRAME R RS R R BB MR BN RL - IR SRR AR FUREE
2 ¥ LER B

Calling key stakeholders to foster high-quality financial reporting and audits

FREErEFOERESERMBERREFT

Roundtable Discussion on Audit Quality and Summarises insights from discussions with investors, audit committee members, and
Climate-integrated Audits in Hong Kong PIE auditors, covering determinants of audit quality and the demand for independent
assurance of sustainability disclosures

(BABHEEHRELSSEHESHR) HBERREE BN ZEENENRRAEERBREEIRASHORR  ARREET
BRERERZARY AHERBEB I ZENT R

Audit implications of current economic Examines the impact of economic conditions on financial reporting and auditing in Hong

conditions for Hong Kong-listed companies Kong-listed entities, urging auditors to enhance professional scepticism in subjective
accounting estimates

(RERRBER LT ARFTHE) FREBHIONEEE LT ERVBERNFINZE  RAREEHH S EEt e 8

HBTINGE F R IRERREE

Building the sustainability reporting and assurance ecosystem

BEAFEERREREERS

Understanding the Baseline - Analysing the Focuses on the readiness of listed entities for sustainability reporting and assurance, and
Market Readiness for Sustainability Reporting the readiness of PIE auditors to provide sustainability assurance and address climate-
and Assurance in Hong Kong related risks in financial audits

(BBHEERRZETSERER) B EE B FEERMZE T EAERBRL - ARARTREBZBENER

AT RS A B T BT I B R Rt P SRR AR B R R HO SRR 1B
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Stakeholder Engagements to Enhance Financial Reporting and
Auditing Quality

Effective stakeholder engagement is an integral part of our work in policy
and governance. It fosters two-way communication, collaboration, and
trust — essential elements to establish the AFRC as a credible and influential
regulator.

To ensure key stakeholders are well aware and understand our publications,
PRO engaged with over 16,000 participants from a diverse group of
stakeholders during the year.

We held eight briefing sessions to share our policy research findings and
provide actionable recommendations to promote financial reporting and
audit quality. These sessions covered two reports: “Report on the Analysis
of the Public Interest Entity Audit Market in Hong Kong” and “Roundtable
Discussion on Audit Quality and Climate-integrated Audits in Hong Kong”.

Over 1,000 members from various professional bodies attended the briefing
sessions, including accountants, auditors, senior management, investors,
and governance stakeholders. We provided tailored messages and
recommendations to each group, aiming to enhance transparency, safeguard
the public interest, and buttress Hong Kong’s capital market.

The invaluable support and participation of professional bodies have been
crucial in disseminating our policy and governance messages throughout
the accounting ecosystem, contributing to collective efforts to improve
governance practices and audit quality.

In addition, we participated in the “CPD Carnival 2024” organised by the
Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors to highlight the essential role
accounting professionals play in the financial reporting and audit value chain,
as well as the importance of upholding integrity as a core value.

Further, to equip CPAs with the necessary knowledge and skills related
to anti-corruption practices in professional accounting, we delivered a
presentation titled “Regulatory Perspective — Accounting Compliance Insights”
in a seminar organised by the Independent Commission Against Corruption
(ICAC). We emphasised the impact of economic conditions on financial
reporting and shared fraud case studies along with their red flags.
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EENEFDRR

To promote high standards in directors’ financial reporting responsibilities, we
also delivered a presentation at the Directorship Master Class organised by
the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. We focused on identifying key attributes
of high-quality auditors, helping directors make informed decisions in the

auditor selection and appointment process.

Number of Stakeholders Engaged

9
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The AFRC is committed to promoting best practices through a series of seminars.
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Building the Sustainability Reporting and Assurance Ecosystem

As a member of the CASG, we collaborated with the FSTB, other financial
regulators, and the HKICPA to publish a roadmap for sustainability disclosure in
Hong Kong. This reaffirms our commitment to driving the development of Hong
Kong's sustainability assurance regulatory framework.

Understanding market trends is essential for developing robust regulations
in sustainability reporting and assurance. In this regard, the findings from our
study titled “Analysing the Market Readiness for Sustainability Reporting and
Assurance in Hong Kong” will inform the development of a regulatory framework
for sustainability assurance and identify areas for capacity building.

Looking ahead, we plan to conduct a public consultation on this framework by
the end of 2025, aiming to gather stakeholder feedback. This framework will
address various aspects, including the registration of assurance providers, the
implementation of assurance and ethics standards, and the establishment of the
related regulatory regime.
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Given the importance of establishing Hong Kong as a premier sustainable
finance hub, we are proactively promoting sustainability reporting and
assurance.

During CPA Australia’s ESG Forum 2024, we participated in a panel
discussion where we shared regulatory developments influencing
sustainability reporting practices and advocated for sustainability assurance
to enhance the credibility of these reports.

We also took part in an event co-hosted by the Hong Kong Independent
Non-Executive Director Association and PwC, where we discussed the
evolving regulatory landscape for sustainability reporting. We emphasised the
necessity of establishing robust data collection processes and internal control
systems to support the preparation of sustainability reports.

We engaged with students from the Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology on the topic “Sustainability Assurance: Guarding Against
Greenwashing”. We discussed sustainability practices in Hong Kong,
the importance of assurance in combating greenwashing, and the role of
regulations.
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AFRC CEO Ms Janey Lai discusses the diverse
career prospects of the accounting profession with
students at the Chinese University of Hong Kong.

U BITHARERE LT REBTXASZNEL

AFRC discusses sustainability practices with the
students at the Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology.
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AFRC

Contributing to the sustainable development of the accounting
profession

Our initiatives to engage the profession are vital for keeping professionals
informed about emerging market issues, upholding professional standards,
and highlighting the value of audit. The publications and engagement
initiatives seek to equip the accounting profession to respond effectively to
market challenges and regulatory changes.
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW

Addressing the issue of talent shortage is essential for the future success
of the profession. This year, we initiated outreach efforts to universities to
nurture young talent in accounting. To support this goal, we conducted a
briefing titled “Advancing the Profession” for approximately 100 students at
the Chinese University of Hong Kong. During this session, we introduced
our regulatory work and discussed our role in developing the profession.
Students learned about the importance of audit quality, pathways into the
audit profession, and opportunities arising from sustainability and technology.

In a webinar organised by the Accounting Development Foundation, we
highlighted the vital role accountants play in maintaining the integrity of
capital markets, upholding audit quality, and encouraging the sustainable
development of the profession.

Registration and Licensing

Our primary objective is to ensure the high-quality and long-term sustainable
development of the accounting profession. To achieve this, we have
implemented a robust registration process that includes stringent vetting
procedures.

In June 2024, we issued “Reminder to PIE auditors: Be prepared for
undertaking PIE engagements” to assert our expectations for practice units
aspiring to register as PIE auditors. To be registered, the practice units
must demonstrate a genuine intention to undertake PIE engagements,
allocate adequate resources, and implement proper client acceptance and
continuance policies and procedures.

For the financial year ended 31 March 2025, we approved the following
number of applications:

Registration of Registration of local
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In January 2025, we further enhanced our process of vetting procedures for
the PIE auditors, ensuring only competent auditors are registered. Applicants
are required to demonstrate that they have skilled resources and expertise to
carry out PIE engagements. Selected applicants are also required to make
a presentation to us, detailing their risk appetite, how they meet the “fit and
proper” requirements, and whether they have appropriate resources and
capacity to handle complex PIE audit engagements.
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Oversight

We oversee the HKICPA to ensure they uphold the quality of the accounting
profession. The HKICPA is responsible for registering CPAs, setting
professional standards for CPAs, providing training for over 47,000 CPAs,
and setting continuing professional development (CPD) requirements for
CPAs.

Since 2019, we have annually assessed the HKICPA’s performance of
Specified Functions' to ensure its accountability, integrity, and effectiveness
in fulfilling those functions. For the 2024 assessment, we focused on how
the HKICPA was supporting the healthy development of the accounting
profession in Hong Kong through its specified functions. This, in turn,
contributes to the overarching goal of enhancing financial reporting and
auditing quality and sustaining Hong Kong’s global financial competitiveness.

In conducting the 2024 assessment, we:

° Reviewed the process of nomination, appointment, and selection
of members of six committees established by the HKICPA and are
responsible for the Specified Functions (Specified Committees),
including governance arrangements and related documents;

° Attended 26 meetings of the Specified Committees and reviewed their
papers and minutes;

° Reviewed the quarterly activity reports submitted by the HKICPA; and

° Conducted on-site assessment that involved reviewing the policies,
procedures, and relevant documents related to the Specified Functions,
conducting walkthroughs of procedures, reviewing samples of the
specified functions’ operations, and meeting with the President of
the HKICPA Council, the chairperson, and selected members of the
Specified Committees.

As sustainability becomes increasingly important for businesses and
societies, capacity-building in the accounting profession is critical. The AFRC is
committed to fostering dialogue with the HKICPA and industry stakeholders
to establish local sustainability-related standards and upskill the profession,
ensuring that Hong Kong is at the forefront of sustainable reporting and
assurance.

" The Specified Functions are: (a) Ascertaining the qualification for registration as CPAs
by conducting examinations; and registering CPAs; (b) Arranging for mutual or reciprocal
recognition of accountants; (c) Setting CPD requirements for CPAs; (d) Issuing or specifying
standards of professional ethics, and accounting, auditing and assurance practices for
CPAs; and (e) Providing training for qualifying as CPAs, and for their CPD.
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Inspection &3]

Our Work and Our Objectives

Inspection is a key component in protecting the public interest by monitoring
and promoting audit quality. Through inspection activities, ISP aims to
communicate to the market our quality expectations for audits, monitor
the audit quality delivered by firms, and take appropriate follow-up actions
to drive quality improvement. These follow-up actions include evaluating
remedial actions proposed by firms to address identified inspection findings
and refer more significant deficiencies to our INC and DIS for consideration of
possible investigations and disciplinary actions.

Our inspections evaluate the quality of a selection of audits completed by the
practice units, the effectiveness of their quality management systems, and
their compliance with the Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorism
Financing (AML/CTF) requirements.

Second Three-year Inspection Cycle (2023-26 Cycle)

As we progress through the midpoint of our second inspection cycle, we
continue to adopt the principles of proportionality and a risk-based approach
to identify audits of greater public interest for inspections. This strategy allows
us to focus on firms that present indicators of higher audit quality risks and
respond proactively to emerging risks in the audit profession, ensuring that
our resources are deployed where they can have the most impact.

This year, we have strengthened our inspection capabilities by expanding our
team and bringing in specialists with diverse expertise. In particular, we have
reinforced our ranks with inspectors who possess extensive knowledge in
information technology (IT) and the financial services sector. This expansion
enhances our core competencies and equips us to navigate the technological
advancements that are reshaping the audit landscape.

Our robust and interactive inspection processes enhance audit quality
by identifying deficiencies and promoting leading practices. Through a
structured, risk-based approach, we evaluate the quality of a selection of
audits completed by firms and their quality management systems, provide
transparent feedback, and support firms in quality improvements.
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Evaluate the design and implementation of
remedial actions for identified inspection
findings. Refer more significant deficiencies
to INC and DIS, where appropriate.

FEE R E R EN R R R
Bt - B EEEARKESEASTE N
WLREREDE

Communicate inspection findings to
firms in a timely and transparent manner.
Share examples of leading practices
observed among firms.

VABNES S sB AR 77 A & 5+ = 15 P
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Overview of 2024/25 Inspections
2024/25 FraEfut

Our Progress and Achievements

Robust and Effective Inspections Driving Improvements in Audit
Quality

Inspections play a crucial role in monitoring and enhancing audit quality,
thereby fostering confidence in a resilient financial ecosystem. We ensure
transparency in our findings, providing auditors with valuable insights to
support continuous improvement. Our inspections are subject to appropriate
oversight by the PRP and the Inspection Committee, ensuring compliance
with internal procedures, maintaining fairness and consistency, and making
appropriate and effective use of our regulatory powers.
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Adopt a risk-based approach and
apply the principle of proportionality when
selecting firms and their engagements
for inspection.
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Conduct inspections to evaluate

a selection of audits completed by

firms, the effectiveness of their quality
management systems, and their
compliance with AML/CTF requirements.
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Auditors Inspected
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Non-PIE Engagements
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Category A firms
annually inspected
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of listed entities by
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PIE Auditors
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Category B firms
non-annually
inspected
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They audit:
foIEsT R PG

2%

of listed entities by
market capitalisation
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Category C firms
non-annually
inspected
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firms inspected with respect to
compliance with AML/CTF requirements
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2 Category A, B and C firms completed more than 100, between 10 and 100, and at least
one but fewer than 10 listed entity audits annually, respectively. Category D firms are non-
PIE practice units that completed more than 20 non-listed entity audits with more public
interest elements and/or more than 500 non-listed entity audits. Other practice units not in

Categories A to D are categorised as Category E firms.

3 SQM refers to Systems of Quality Management.

During the year, we inspected 53 practice units, covering 33 of their SQM,
51 PIE engagements, 46 non-PIE engagements, and 51 of their compliance
with AML/CTF requirements. With our growing expertise, we have placed a
greater focus on highly complex audit engagements, particularly those within
the financial services sector and those that heavily rely on the IT systems of

audited entities.
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The results of our 2024/25 inspections indicated that firms, particularly
those previously subject to our inspections, are demonstrating a stronger
compliance culture with an increased focus on audit quality. We are pleased
to observe an improvement in the overall audit quality rating of the inspected
audit engagements in Category A firms, reflecting their proactive commitment
to implementing timely and effective remedial actions in response to our
inspection findings. This progress not only highlights the effectiveness of our
inspection efforts but also underscores the importance of setting the right
tone at the top by the firm’s leadership to drive sustained improvements.

On the other hand, inspection results for Category B showed a mixed
performance. Furthermore, our inspections of Category C firms undergoing
their first inspections revealed significant deficiencies that fell below our
expectations. These firms must take robust actions to strengthen their
policies and practices to improve audit quality. A firm’s inspection result and
its commitment to remediation will be considered in relation to its registration,
the frequency of our future inspections, and the discharge of our functions
under the AFRCO.

Staying Vigilant to Prevailing Practices of the Profession That Indicate
Risks to Audit Quality

As a vigilant regulator in a dynamic market, we take proactive action to
address prevailing practices of the profession that indicate risks to audit
quality.

Since 2022, we have had a dedicated task force focusing on monitoring
and responding to changes of the auditors of listed entities. We engage with
outgoing auditors to understand the reasons behind their resignations. At
the same time, we assess the competencies and capabilities of incoming
auditors, and their plans to address any unresolved audit matters identified by
their predecessors.

Our monitoring activities have provided valuable insights into emerging
risks in the markets. In July 2024, we published a report titled “Analysis of
Listed Entities Suspended from Trading Due to Delay of Preliminary Annual
Results Announcement”, highlighting concerns over trading suspensions and
reinforcing the critical role of PIE auditors as gatekeepers in the resumption
process.

Insights from our monitoring activities and engagements with auditors will be
taken into account in determining our future inspection priorities, ensuring
that we focus on emerging risks and areas of concern that could impact audit
quality and market confidence.

In October 2024, we released an overview of the non-PIE audit market
in Hong Kong. This overview not only highlights significant trends and
challenges within the industry but also empowers the public with a clearer
understanding of the audit industry’s dynamics.
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Pioneering Behavioural Changes and Fostering a Culture of Self-
Improvement

In today’s volatile economic landscape, the role of the auditor has become
increasingly paramount. Auditors are the backbone of trust in financial
markets, instilling confidence among investors, businesses, and the public.
Competent auditors are essential for upholding the integrity and vibrancy of
the accounting profession.

To support auditors in their crucial role, the ISP has released an extensive
range of inspection publications, including the Annual Inspection Report,
Audit Focus, Inspection Insights, and Checkpoint, to equip firms with the
knowledge needed to uphold audit quality. These publications not only share
our inspection insights but also offer practical recommendations and set
clear expectations for addressing common deficiencies and emerging risks in
the marketplace. By leveraging these valuable resources, firms can enhance
their policies and practices to stay effective and responsive to industry
developments and leading practices. These valuable resources empower
firms to foster a culture of self-improvement in audit quality and a commitment
to continuous quality enhancement.
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We believe that effective two-way communication between the AFRC
and firms is essential for promoting audit quality. As part of our ongoing
engagement with firm leadership, we conducted two briefing sessions in
September 2024 attended by over 40 Quality Control System Responsible
Persons from PIE auditors and more than 60 representatives from Category
D firms. These sessions provided a platform to share insights from our 2023
inspections, helping firms address key findings.

Building on this momentum, we held individual regulatory meetings with
the leadership of several firms that present higher audit quality risks. During
these meetings, we expressed our concerns regarding their progress in
improving audit quality. We emphasised our expectations for an unwavering
commitment to audit quality, ensuring that operational priorities never come at
the expense of audit quality. These briefing sessions and regulatory meetings
are vital to our mission of inspiring positive changes in attitudes and market
behaviours.

e

Inspection Insights
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Annual Inspection Report
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Fostering Sustainable Growth and Development in the Accounting
Profession

We are committed to equipping the accounting profession with practical
insights and actionable guidance that promote growth and development. To
further support their continuous learning and professional development, we
have broadened the range of resources available, ensuring they are tailored
to meet their specific needs, particularly those of SMPs.

Representatives from ISP shares valuable inspection
insights at the 2024 SMP Symposium.
BERIRRN2024F EH/ N EENTANE LD Z
BENERIME -

AIFRC ™

AUDIT FOCUS
REMINDERS FOR
2024/25
YEAR-END AUDITS

AFRC Report Digest
eV RMEHEERR

In November 2024, we participated in the SMP Symposium organised by the
HKICPA. This platform provided us with an opportunity to share insights into
the inspection processes relevant to SMPs. In addition, we presented leading
practices aimed at enhancing audit quality, underscoring our dedication to
elevating standards within the profession.

In February 2025, we released an inaugural episode of the AFRC Connect
video series, “How Important is Audit Risk Assessment?”. Designed to
provide practical insights and essential technical reminders in an engaging
and accessible format, the episode features real-life case studies to simplify
complex concepts, making them practical for professionals.

Building on this initiative, we released an AFRC Report Digest, a 5-minute
video that distils key messages from our Audit Focus. This video translates
technical content into clear and digestible takeaways, helping the audience
grasp and retain critical information more effectively.

The overwhelmingly positive feedback we have received reaffirms that our
efforts play a crucial role in supporting the continuous advancement of the
accounting profession.
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The AFRC holds two briefing sessions for PIE and
non-PIE auditors to emphasise the vital role of firm
leadership in upholding audit quality and fostering
a culture of continuous improvement.
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Investigation and Compliance #& 2
Our Work and Our Objectives RMANIHEREDN

Investigation and enquiry form the cornerstone of the AFRC’s regulatory and
oversight framework. Our regulatory powers include conducting investigations
into possible misconduct by PIE auditors and professional persons, i.e.
CPAs and practice units, and enquiries into potential non-compliance with
accounting requirements by PIEs in their financial reports.

Complaints and Other Sources of Intelligence

Financial reporting and audit quality underpin public confidence in the
reliability of financial statements. To protect the public interest, INC collects
intelligence of possible misconduct and accounting non-compliance from
sources including complaints from members of the public, whistleblower
reports, referrals from internal departments and other regulators, referrals
from professional bodies, and our Financial Statements Review Programme
(FSRP). The intelligence received is vital for INC to uncover and pinpoint
potential misconduct and non-compliance.

We offer a platform with clear guidance for the public, our regulatees, and
whistleblowers to submit complaints and report observed deficiencies.
Dedicated channels are also established with internal departments and
external regulators to refer relevant matters to us.

As part of our market monitoring activities, we administered the FSRP, a non-
statutory initiative, with an aim to proactively monitor the financial reporting
and audit quality of PIEs. Financial statements of PIEs are selected for review
based on a range of risk-based criteria, which are reviewed regularly in
response to changes in the current economic outlook, regulatory environment
and common issues identified from our ongoing investigations and enquiries.

The strategic amalgamation of proactive and reactive methodologies equips
us to effectively identify and detect possible misconduct and non-compliance,
and safeguard the quality of financial reporting and auditing.
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW
EENEFDRR

Investigations and Enquiries

Upon receipt of allegations of potential misconduct/non-compliance, we
carry out thorough assessment and consider the need for further action. An
investigation or enquiry is initiated after evaluating various factors such as
the severity of the issue, the benefit to public interest, and the sufficiency of
evidence to substantiate the allegations of misconduct or non-compliance.
Investigation findings where disciplinary action is required are referred to DIS.
For enquiry cases where we conclude that there is non-compliance with
accounting requirements, we may require the listed entity concerned to remove
the non-compliance in the specified manner and within a specified period.

As part of our strategies to carry out the investigation and enquiry function,
we enhance regulatory synergy through effective regulatory and enforcement
collaboration with local and Mainland China regulators. We promote the
exchange of intelligence, joint investigation, or other forms of regulatory
actions with our counterparts and law enforcement agencies where
appropriate.

Our Progress and Achievements

Enhanced Collaboration on Cross-Boundary Audits

Building on the positive momentum in regulatory collaboration in the previous
fiscal year, we have further enhanced the efficiency and effectiveness of our
cooperation with local and Mainland China regulators this year. Notably, our
collaboration with the MoF had been strengthened by the frequent exchange of
market inteligence concerning the standards and quality of cross-boundary audit
services, as well as expedited provision of essential evidence located in Mainland
China.

This collaboration between the AFRC and the MoF had resulted in the
identification of violations of Mainland China laws and regulations by a Hong
Kong audit firm, prompting subsequent regulatory actions by the MoF in
August 2024. This incident underscored the effectiveness of the collaboration
between the AFRC and the MoF and reaffirms the significance both parties
place on regulatory cooperation to uphold high standards of audit quality,
thereby fostering public confidence in PIE auditors.

In September 2024, the MoF concluded an investigation into the Mainland
China audit work on a major property developer and imposed administrative
sanctions on an audit firm in Mainland China for its serious infractions,
marking a significant milestone in coordinated cross-boundary enforcement
actions. Concurrently, our independent investigation on the audits of related
PIE is ongoing, with the support of the SEB of the MoF. Through enhanced
communication and closer collaboration with the SEB of the MoF, progress
had been made in respect of several other of our investigations involving
cross-boundary audits. This vividly illustrated the two regulators’ unwavering
commitment to protect the interests of the investing public on both sides of
the border, thereby reinforcing Hong Kong’s reputation as an international
financial centre.
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW

Promoting Awareness of Suspicious Activities or Misconduct

Despite clear stipulation in the AFRCO that PIE engagements shall be
conducted by local PIE auditors registered with the AFRC or overseas PIE
auditors recognised by the AFRC, we have initiated several investigations into
potential non-compliance with registration requirements this year. Addressing
such potential non-compliance is crucial to maintaining the integrity of
financial reporting and stakeholder trust, and we remind PIE auditors and their
personnel of the critical importance of full awareness and adherence to the
relevant requirements.

By closely following the AFRC’s Guide for the Registration of PIE Auditors,
which outlines detailed criteria and procedures for registration and renewal
applications, auditors can ensure they meet the required standards of
professional conduct.

audit regulation

Press briefing for the AFRC’s Annual Investigation and
Compliance Report
eV RFERERENHEENE

Operations Review for 2024-25

In the fiscal year 2024-2025, we have strategically prioritised investigations
involving significant public interest, taking into consideration the nature and
gravity of the potential misconduct or non-compliance, as well as the severity
of the potential impact on the public and the accounting profession. We have
also established specialised teams within INC to handle the assessment of
complaints and carry out investigations and enquiries, in order to maximise
the unique skills and experience of our team members and further enhance
our efficiency. Externally, we have further promoted the importance of
stakeholders’ cooperation and timely responses to our requirements to
expedite our evidence-gathering process for investigations and enquiries. We
remain committed to protecting the public interest by deterring misconduct
and non-compliance through rigorous investigations and enquiries.

Regulatory collaboration enhances effectiveness in
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AFRC emphasises the importance of adherence
to registration requirements for carrying out PIE
engagements
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Maintaining the quality of cross-border audit services
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW
EENEFDRR

Owing to the public’s growing confidence in the AFRC and recognition of our
efforts and results, there has been a rise in the number of complaints and
referrals. We continued to adopt a proportionality approach to handle a total
of 326 complaints and referrals in 2024-2025, including 64 brought forward
and 262 newly received. We completed assessments for 255 pursuable
cases during the year, while continually reducing the aging of assessments in
progress despite the increased volume handled. Through the adoption of our
re-engineered risk-based approach to carry out the FSRP, we also selected
130 financial statements in 2024-25 for review.

During the year, INC handled 257 investigations, including 216 investigations
brought forward from the previous period. Of those initiated this year, 21
and 20 investigations concerned PIE auditors and professional persons
respectively. We completed 16 investigations during the year, of which 14
cases were referred to the DIS for consideration of appropriate disciplinary
actions, indicating positive trends in both productivity and effectiveness.

In addition, INC handled 45 enquiries brought forward from the previous year
and initiated one enquiry during the year. Apart from one enquiry completed
during the year and two cases that are being conducted by Financial
Reporting Review Committee, the remaining 43 are being conducted by INC
staff.

We recognise the importance of educating the market on prevailing
irregularities and non-compliance, in upholding the quality of financial
reporting and promoting the healthy and sustainable development of the
accounting profession. In August 2024, we published our fourth Annual
Investigation and Compliance Report, which provided a summary of our
key observations and suggestions in relation to misconduct and accounting
non-compliance identified from concluded and ongoing investigations and
enquiries. This report served as a valuable resource for stakeholders, offering
insights into common issues and guidance on best practices to prevent
future occurrences. By sharing our findings and suggestions, we aim to foster
a culture of transparency and accountability within the profession, ultimately
enhancing the reliability and integrity of financial reporting and auditing.

The PRP scrutinises our work in complaints handling, investigation and
enquiry functions, to ensure our actions taken on individual cases adhere
to our internal procedures. The PRP published the 2023 Annual Report in
December 2024 which, among others, included their conclusion on their
review of 13 cases handled by the investigation and enquiry function. The
PRP concluded that we had handled the cases in accordance with the
internal procedures.
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"V Discipline &£1&E 7 &b
Our Work and Our Objectives KM ITEREN
DIS is responsible for carrying out the disciplinary function of the AFRC. We & REDEHEEHITES M BENLRED B - &
take timely and appropriate disciplinary action in cases of misconduct for the  fIFt A E T AR LB MEE NLEEREDTTE -

purposes of deterrence, investor protection, upholding proper standards of
conduct, and promoting public confidence in the quality of financial reporting
and audits.

Since the further regulatory reform in 2022, we have handled a diverse
range of disciplinary cases with our expanded disciplinary powers over
the accounting profession. We are committed to leveraging the full
spectrum of available regulatory tools to ensure fair, proportionate, and
effective enforcement outcomes. Our approaches encompass taking
robust disciplinary actions and imposing proportionate sanctions to curb
misconduct, as well as issuing Compliance Advice Letters where appropriate
to convey regulatory concerns and provide guidance on future compliance.

Our Progress and Achievements

During the reporting period, we have handled disciplinary cases involving both
PIE auditors and professional persons (i.e. CPAs and practice units), with a
particular focus on audits of listed entities where significant public interest
was involved. Our steadfast disciplinary actions in our published cases are
reflective of our mission to safeguard public interest and uphold confidence in
the financial market.
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW
EEREFER

Providing Guidance and Cultivating Professional Development

With a view to providing timely guidance to the profession, we publish press
releases and statements of disciplinary action promptly upon the conclusion
of disciplinary cases. We highlight deficiencies and breaches observed in
disciplinary cases, providing contextual understanding and analysis of the key
issues. This enables the profession to apply lessons learnt and implement
necessary improvements in their practices, thereby cultivating a culture of
continuous improvement and professional development.

Upholding Public Interest Through Robust Disciplinary Actions

Audits of listed entities play a critical role in ensuring transparency and
accountability in the financial markets, which are fundamental to Hong Kong’s
success as a leading international financial centre. To protect the public
interest, the DIS is committed to combating misconduct in relation to the
audits of listed entities. Through taking appropriate disciplinary action, we
aim to improve auditors’ standard of conduct when they are carrying out their
professional responsibilities and to enhance public confidence in the quality of
financial reporting.

In a disciplinary case, the AFRC imposed public reprimands and pecuniary
penalties totalling over HK$1.7 million against a PIE audit firm, an
engagement partner, and two engagement quality control reviewers for
conducting negligent audits of a former listed company for two consecutive
years. The company had been unable to produce books and records to
evidence the operations of two major operating subsidiaries. The auditor
allowed the company’s management to effectively remove two major
operating subsidiaries from the scope of the audit by deconsolidating the
subsidiaries. In doing so, the auditor chose to rely heavily on management’s
representations without appropriate corroboration. This case serves as a
reminder that auditors should always exercise professional scepticism and act
with due care and diligence when carrying out their work, particularly where
listed entities are involved.
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW

Looking ahead, DIS will continue to prioritise cases of significant public
interest, in particular, PIE audit cases. We will not hesitate to hold PIE
auditors and their registered responsible persons accountable for conduct
undermining the confidence of the investing public.

Ensuring Compliance with the AFRC’s Statutory Requirements

We take non-compliance with the AFRC’s statutory requirements and
regulatory requests seriously, as it hinders the AFRC’s ability to monitor and
uphold audit quality, thereby undermining public interest.

In another disciplinary case concluded during the reporting period, the AFRC
suspended a regulatee for two years and imposed a pecuniary penalty of
HK$300,000 for his flagrant disregard of two statutory requirements to
produce information and documents for the AFRC’s inspection of his two
practice units. This case underscores the importance of timely compliance
with the AFRC’s statutory requirements.

We will continue to take swift disciplinary action against non-compliance with
statutory requirements, particularly regarding the exercise of the AFRC’s
registration and inspection powers, which are essential for the AFRC to
discharge its regulatory functions and safeguard public interest.

Recognising Cooperation in Disciplinary Cases

The AFRC recognises and values cooperation in disciplinary cases, as
it enables the prompt remediation of misconduct, fosters a culture of
responsibility and self-improvement in regulatees, and facilitates the timely
conclusion of disciplinary cases.

During the reporting period, we concluded a settlement case concerning
audit deficiencies by a PIE auditor and two engagement partners in relation
to the audits of a listed company spanning six consecutive years, where we
imposed public reprimands, pecuniary penalties totalling HK$1.456 million,
and our first-ever direction on regulatees to undertake additional continuing
professional development hours.

In light of the regulatees’ full admission of liability at an early stage and
proactiveness to propose improvement measures, we have exercised our
discretion and reduced the pecuniary penalties by 30%, the highest level of
reduction available under the Guidance Note on Cooperation with the AFRC.
By recognising regulatees’ admission and cooperation to resolve cases
expeditiously, we promote a culture of accountability among regulatees while
achieving our regulatory objectives in an efficient and effective manner.
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW
EEREFER

Improving Compliance Culture

Compliance Advice Letters provide regulatees with guidance, advice and
educational information on how to comply with relevant regulations and
standards, encouraging self-correction and enabling the regulatees to take
timely remedial actions to address the issues identified without the need for
enforcement actions. They play a vital part in improving compliance culture
and facilitating the development of the profession.

Two Compliance Advice Letters were issued during the reporting period
— one against a CPA and another against a corporate practice — in cases
involving conduct that fell below expected standards but was not sufficiently
serious to warrant disciplinary actions.

Accounting and Financial Reporting Review Tribunal

During the reporting period, four applications for review of our disciplinary
decisions were lodged before the Accounting and Financial Reporting Review
Tribunal. The outcomes of these review cases are anticipated to lay down
important legal principles and provide further guidance to the profession
on the application of the regulatory regime. As of the end of the reporting
period, the review cases are either in progress or pending the Tribunal’'s
written determination. We will publish the outcome of the review cases when
available to inform the public and provide guidance to the profession.
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BN EFERE

Legal SE#EEB

Our Work and Our Objectives

LEG provides legal advice to the Board on the administration of the AFRCO
and the performance of the AFRC’s regulatory functions. Our work covers
all legal and ethical related matters, including corporate governance and
compliance with other laws and regulations.

Through the advice we give, we seek to assist the AFRC in fulfilling its main
regulatory objectives to maintain and uphold audit and financial reporting
quality through a tripartite emphasis on effective regulation, strengthened
governance, and sustainable development of the accounting profession.
LEG also supports the AFRC’s functional departments by way of giving
legal advice and assisting their policy development. In discharging these
responsibilities, LEG pays heed to the above-mentioned strategic emphasis
of the AFRC and the principle of proportionality and a risk-based approach
followed by our functional departments.

In the reporting period, LEG continued to work in tandem with the Board
and other functional departments. Through understanding their strategic and
operational needs, LEG identified and managed any legal risks, and provided
the necessary day-to-day legal support for the delivery of departmental
objectives and achievement of the AFRC’s overall strategic goals.

Our Progress and Achievements

Our Role as Legal Adviser

A unified regulatory framework for public interest entity auditors and the
accounting profession under the AFRCO has brought synergy and efficiency.
At the same time, as the AFRC performs statutory duties and exercises
legal powers in its day-to-day operations, different provisions of the AFRCO
inevitably present legal issues for LEG’s advice or assistance.

The expanded functions under the AFRCO also bring about cross-
departmental collaborative opportunities in which LEG has made contributions.
During the reporting period, our functional departments undertook many new
initiatives and issued publications and press releases to assist the profession’s
compliance with laws and regulations, foster good governance among them
and promote its long-term development. In addition to providing legal advice,
LEG contributed to these efforts by reviewing the relevant draft documents and
publications where appropriate.
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EENEFDRR

In turn, these collaborations have enabled LEG to better understand the
issues and challenges faced by our functional departments when discharging
their functions under the AFRCO, and to assist the AFRC in the enrichment
of its regulatory toolkit. This appreciation also ensures that LEG’s continuous
review of the AFRCO is well-informed about the AFRC’s regulatory needs
and the current environment in which the profession operates. These insights
can be tapped into for the purpose of considering proposals and solutions to
enhance the current regulatory regime.

Corporate Governance

LEG also plays a part in contributing to the AFRC’s corporate governance.
LEG provides support to the work of the Advisory Committee, a duty it has
been performing ever since the latter’s establishment under the AFRCO.
The Committee consists of representatives of different stakeholder sectors,
including the accounting profession, the investor community and the business
sector. It serves the important function of providing advice to the AFRC
on matters of policy regarding its functions and regulatory objectives. LEG
supports the Committee by providing its members with an understanding
of the AFRC’s regulatory objectives and communicating members’ advice
and feedback to our functional departments to better inform their work in the
regulation and development of the profession.

Within the AFRC, we are also responsible for the centralised management of
conflict of interests which is vital to ensuring the impartiality and independence
of all the decisions taken. The reporting period saw the successful launch
of the electronic declaration form as a means to enhance our organisational
efficiency.

LEG continued to collaborate closely with FNA on a variety of internal
governance matters ranging from staff related and human resources issues
to AFRC’s procurement policy and processes. A major initiative on this front
is the ongoing Governance of Information System project which we have
undertaken together with the IT Division, which involves a holistic review
and enhancement of our system of governance of our IT infrastructure and
information assets. During the reporting period, privacy impact assessments
and security risk assessments of relevant functions and systems were
conducted. In parallel, we continued our work in reviewing AFRC’s policies
and procedures on information governance and data security to ensure they
are up to date and fit for purpose.

dlyl.
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW

Regulatory Collaboration

Putting into action the AFRC’s strategic focus of deepening collaboration
with local, Mainland and international regulators, LEG continued to provide
legal support to the AFRC in its collaboration with the Mainland authorities to
strengthen the supervision and management of cross-boundary audit services
as well as that with the US PCAOB in respect of the latter’s inspections in
Hong Kong.

In the reporting period, we also joined forces with the FSTB, the Inland
Revenue Department, and the HKICPA to formulate measures in tackling the
issue of “bogus accountants”. We published a dedicated webpage on our
website to educate the public on identifying bogus accountants, the use of
the AFRC’s online registers of practice units and the appropriate channels
for lodging complaints or reporting related offences to law enforcement
agencies, in an effort to foster the healthy and sustainable development of
the accounting profession whilst ensuring the overall quality and credibility of
financial reporting.

AIFRC =5

“Bogus CPA”

Home / Functions / Investigations and Enquiries / “Bogus CPA"

“Bogus CPA”

Since 1 October 2022, the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council (AFRC) has dedicated itself to raising audit quality in Hong Kong and to promote the development of the accounting

profession.

Anissue which has concemed the profession for many years is the “Bogus CPA” issue. Hong Kong’s law may require audited accounts to be prepared under different circumstances. The most
common is the requirement for a company to submit annual audited accounts for tax purposes. These audited accounts can only be signed by a certified public accountant (practising), ie. a

certified public accountant with a Practising Certificate (see the FAQ below)

A"bogus CPA" refers to a person providing audit services when he is not qualified to do 5o, which is a criminal offence. Amore common problem is when a small number of certified public
accountants (practising) signing large numbers of audited accounts indiscriminately, without due regard to audit quality and professional standards, often through the introduction by
intermedaries. This type of misconduct potentially diminishes the overall quality and credibility of financial reporting in Hong Kong, and damages the reputation of the accounting profession and its

long-term development.

To address these issues, the AFRC has prepared the following FAQs to enable members of the public, especially companies, to have a fuller understanding of the legal requirements in relation to
the signing of audited accounts. We also encourage members of the public to report suspected criminal offences and misconduct to the AFRC and relevant law enforcement agencies.

Frequently Asked Questions
Q1. Whatis a bogus accountant?

Q2. Whatis a certfied public accountant (practising)?

AboutAFRC  Corporate Governance  Functions  Find an Auditor  Publications ~ News Centre
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MyAccount  Forms  Careers  Contactus ~ Complaints & | ¥

A dedicated webpage designed for tackling the issue of “bogus accountants”

AT BETE MEMRNER

Leveraging on the AFRC’s memorandum of understanding with the Hong
Kong Police Force signed in September 2022, LEG has been in active
cooperation with the police in our case referrals concerning suspected
criminal offence under the AFRCO including bogus accountant issues and
breach of registration requirements under the AFRCO.
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW
EENEFDRR

Corporate and Public Affairs #4& & A L= IB

Our Work and Our Objectives

To keep the public abreast of our regulatory initiatives and latest developments,
Corporate and Public Affairs Department engages proactively with our
stakeholders and media through diversified channels of communication.

We also explore innovative and interactive ways, such as video formats,
to convey our messages more succinctly, and enhance our visibility in the
market.

Our Progress and Achievements

Explaining the AFRC’s Dual Role in Regulation and Market Development
To better explain our regulatory principles and expectations, we actively
engage with stakeholders through seminars, briefing sessions, and various
speaking engagements. The AFRC is dedicated to fulfilling its dual role in both
regulation and market development.

Our Chairman and management have addressed the public on a variety
of critical topics, including regulatory practices, the role of auditors, cross-
boundary opportunities and challenges, and the importance of regulatory
collaboration. These discussions help clarify our regulatory framework and
foster transparency within the profession.

We also act as market promoters. Through university outreach programmes,
we address essential subjects such as talent development, Al, sustainability
reporting and assurance, and corporate governance. These speaking
engagements underscore our commitment to nurturing the next generation of
professionals, and they also showcase the business value that accountants
contribute to society.

By engaging with the community and sharing insights on contemporary issues,
we aim to enhance public awareness and understanding of our dual role,
ultimately contributing to a more informed and resilient accounting profession.
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AFRC representatives attend various events and
speaking opportunities to build industry thought
leadership.

Y RRREBTRSE LEFRZDAMRASY BN
BHERE -

80 Accounting and Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2024-25
S RUBERRE 2024-25F



MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW

Publications and Communications to Highlight Regulatory Updates
To keep the public informed about our policy initiatives,enhance
understanding of our regulatory objectives and mission, and bring attention to
critical industry issues, we conducted interviews with various media outlets.

During the year, we issued 39 press releases to improve public understanding
of our work and roles.

In an interview with HOY TV, we shared insights on the rise in auditor
resignations and discussed the AFRC’s ongoing actions to ensure reasonable
and sustainable audit quality. Similarly, in an interview with Metro Broadcast,
we highlighted the need for accountants to possess not only technical
expertise but also strong communication and analytical skills. We emphasised
the importance of harnessing Al to develop specialised skill sets that assist in
managing administrative tasks, while reaffirming that Al will never fully replace
the invaluable role of accountants.

HOY TV interviews former AFRC Chairman Dr Kelvin Wong.
S RRETEERABLEZMAERSMA -
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‘Audit malpractice can damage Hong Kong’s financial
reputation®

AFRC Chairman Dr David Sun addresses the

media at the media luncheon.
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Metro Broadcast interviews AFRC CEO Ms Janey Lai.
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ACCA interviews AFRC CEO Ms Janey Lai.
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Leveraging Digital Channels for More Effective Communications

In today’s fast-paced digital landscape, we have shifted more efforts towards
digital communications to connect more effectively with our audiences.
We have produced engaging videos, infographics, and interactive posts to
capture attention and convey our messages clearly.

We launched our first video series, simplifying technical concepts through
visuals and bite-sized content to make it easier for practitioners, especially
SMPs, to grasp important information and encourage continuous learning.
These online videos complement our workshops and seminars, making
professional development more easily accessible and convenient.

To support cross-boundary knowledge sharing and promote best practices,
we set up a WeChat account in December, targeting CPA community in
Mainland China. This initiative is designed to expand our reach and foster
collaboration among practitioners in the region, enhancing our commitment
to fostering collaboration and knowledge sharing across different areas,
ultimately enhancing the quality of practice in the accounting field.
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW

BN EFERE

O P
il Finance and Administration 817 & 17 B &

Our Work and Our Objectives

Our corporate functions are crucial to facilitating seamless operations and
achieving strategic goals. This is achieved through the security, quality
control, and effective allocation of our core resources, including facilities,
people, information technology, and financial resources.

Our Progress and Achievements

The successful establishment and implementation of appropriate policies
and procedures are essential to achieving the desired outcomes from our
corporate functions. During the reporting period, our corporate functions
continued to place significant emphasis on reviewing our policies and
procedures.

People

Our organisation attracts top talent who embody our core values. Committed
to fostering a “One Team One Culture” philosophy, we cultivate an
environment where unity and collaboration drive our collective success. We
place strong emphasis on cultivating a learning culture, and we strive to
promote a performance-driven culture through rewards and recognition.

We place significant emphasis on recognising and rewarding high performers
within our organisation. By championing performance rewards and offering
targeted development opportunities for our top talents, we acknowledge their
exceptional contributions while supporting their growth potential in alignment
with our values of proficiency and accountability. In addition, we incorporate
various training programmes to cultivate our workforce and uphold the quality
of our deliverables.

Over the past year, we organised 51 organisation-wide in-house trainings
and Learn and Share sessions. These sessions aimed to improve technical
skills and soft skills, covering topics such as anti-money laundering, financial
reporting standards, and corruption. To enhance cross-departmental
knowledge and improve work efficiency, different teams were invited to
present their insights during these sessions. Additionally, we hosted a World
Book Day event to spark interest in non-work-related areas where staff
shared their favourite books.
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Promoting Gender Equality

As a caring organisation, we are committed to fostering a diverse and
inclusive workplace. At AFRC, our gender representation includes 34% male
and 66% female employees. This commitment to gender equality is evident
in our recruitment and employment practices, compensation structures,
employee welfare initiatives, and career development opportunities. We also
recognise the unique needs of working mothers and offer tailored support to
help them thrive in their careers.

Commitment to Professionalism and Quality

Upholding professionalism and quality in our work is our primary goal. As of
31 March 2025, 79% of our staff bring diverse professional backgrounds,
enabling them to deeply understand the market and effectively support
AFRC’s various functions. Among our team, 23 members are lawyers or have
legal training, while 76 are CPAs or have accounting training.

Finance

We have implemented rigorous expenditure control measures and maintained
a strict budget, including a headcount freeze and staff redeployment, to
effectively exercise the regulatory functions of the AFRC. Regular expenditure
reports are prepared for continuous monitoring and resource management.

Information Technology

In light of heightened cybersecurity risks, we are stepping up our cyber
resilience to safeguard our IT services, data, and assets, to ensure operational
continuity of critical systems. We will keep abreast of cybersecurity
intelligence and solutions to respond to any changes in its threat landscape,
enabling us to swiftly identify potential cyber risks to the AFRC’s operations,
and mitigate these risks effectively. To enhance operational efficiency, the
AFRC is focused on digitalising applications, streamlining workflows, and
increasing the adoption of automation capabilities. These investments not
only improve work efficiency but promote a green workplace.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF AUDIT

Audit Commission
The Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council

Opinion

| have audited the financial statements of the Accounting and Financial
Reporting Council set out on pages 89 to 117, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2025, and the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in funds and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
material accounting policy information.

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council as at
31 March 2025, and of its results of operations and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with section 18(2) of the Accounting and
Financial Reporting Council Ordinance (Cap. 588).

Basis for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with section 19(1) of the Accounting and
Financial Reporting Council Ordinance and the Audit Commission auditing
standards. My responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Audiitor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section
of my report. | am independent of the Accounting and Financial Reporting
Council in accordance with those standards, and | have fulfilled my other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with those standards. | believe that the
audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for my opinion.

Other information

The Accounting and Financial Reporting Council is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all the information included in
the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council’s 2025 Annual Report, other
than the financial statements and my auditor’s report thereon.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information
and | do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, | am required to report that
fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Accounting and Financial

Reporting Council for the financial statements

The Accounting and Financial Reporting Council is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards and section 18(2) of the
Accounting and Financial Reporting Council Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Accounting and Financial Reporting
Council is responsible for assessing its ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting.

The Accounting and Financial Reporting Council is assisted by its Finance and
Corporate Affairs Committee in discharging its responsibilities for overseeing
the financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the

financial statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with the Audit Commission auditing
standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF AUDIT

As part of an audit in accordance with the Audit Commission auditing
standards, | exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

- identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control;

— obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council’s internal control;

- evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council;

- conclude on the appropriateness of the Accounting and Financial
Reporting Council’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
| am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Accounting and Financial
Reporting Council to cease to continue as a going concern; and

- evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF AUDIT
EEERRS

| communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that | identify
during my audit.

Terry Mok Audit Commission

Assistant Director of Audit 6th Floor, High Block

for Director of Audit Queensway Government Offices
66 Queensway

22 May 2025 Hong Kong
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CYpIE R

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME e N
For the year ended 31 March 2025 HE2025F3A31HIFE

(2RNABTTIIR)

(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2025 2024
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
g FEx FAET
Income [ON
Levy income HERA 4 172,409 126,831
Grant income EEULON 5 9,936 58,318
Licence fee income MR & UL A 6 43,065 10,782
Application fee income BEEARA 6 1,473 587
Other income EgA 7 13,505 8,225
240,388 204,743
Expenditure * i
Staff costs BITAA 8,9 (181,857) (162,209)
Non-executive directors’ emoluments IERITESE 9 (4,080) (3,480)
Premises expenses M H 10 (4,698) (4,906)
Corporate communications expenses HREERZ N 11 (460) (606)
Legal and professional fees FERREESMA (2,311) (1,125)
Interest on lease liabilities HEHERE 15 (4,953) (5,667)
Depreciation and amortisation e ks
— Property, plant and equipment — W% - REREIM 14 (5,433) (6,949)
- Right-of-use assets —PHAEEE 15 (17,164) (23,626)
— Intangible asset —EmEEE 16 (738) (216)
Other operating expenses HAh @2 12 (18,694) (16,739)
(240,388) (025,523)
Deficit and total comprehensive loss FREMRAFEEEE
for the year - (20,780)

_
<
]
z
<
Z 4
[

The notes on pages 93 to 117 form part of these financial statements. FREE7TEMMIFEARMBIREN—3D -
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 March 2025

(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

AR R
H2025%3A31H
(BB TLIIR)

2025 2024
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
MI5E FET FET
Non-current assets IEREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Vs - BB REEM 14 23,241 26,930
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 85,823 102,987
Intangible asset | EE 16 4,233 261
Deposits and prepayments E& RIERFRIE 17 9,672 6,069
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 122,969 136,247
Current assets RBEE
Deposits, receivables and prepayments %% - FEUBR X & FE {7008 17 28,309 22,352
Cash and cash equivalents He MREEEY 18 404,639 223,672
Total current assets MENEEAE 432,948 246,024
Current liabilities BEIN=Ri
Accounts payable, accruals FEBRR - BT B A K
and other liabilities HihBfE 19 (10,477) (9,801)
Deferred income PEIELA 20 (238,759) (139,287)
Lease liabilities HEBE 15 (16,605) (15,795)
Total current liabilities REEELE (265,841) (164,883)
Net current assets REEEFE 167,107 81,141
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Deferred income REUA 20 (1583,679) (64,386)
Lease liabilities HEBE 15 (75,369) (91,974)
Provision for reinstatement cost EIR T2 A B 21 (7,500) (7,500)
Total non-current liabilities FnmemERE (236,548) (163,860)
Net assets EEFE 53,528 53,528
Funds =
General fund —RE® 22 53,528 53,528
Total funds BEE 53,528 53,528

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 22 May 2025

Dr David Sun, GBS, JP #%EEEL  €XFESE  AF¥EHL

Chairman /&

The notes on pages 93 to 117 form part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS EegER
For the year ended 31 March 2025 HZE2025F3A31HIEFE
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (&FELABTTLYITR)
General fund
—RES
HK$’000
FET
At 1 April 2023 7202344 418 74,308
Deficit and total comprehensive loss for the year FREA R RIREEE (20,780)
At 31 March 2024 720243 A31H 53,528
At 1 April 2024 20244818 53,528
Deficit and total comprehensive loss for the year FREL R BIRE BB -
At 31 March 2025 720253531 H 53,528
25
Z < |
%
The notes on pages 93 to 117 form part of these financial statements. FREE7TEMMIFEARMBIREN—3D -
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b E e
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS RERER
For the year ended 31 March 2025 HZ=2025F3A31HILFE
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (&FELABTTLYITR)
2025 2024
Note HK$°000 HK$’'000
FEE FiEx FAxT
Cash flows from operating activities K& FHELENRESHRE
Deficit for the year FREA - (20,780)
Adjustments for: FEIFR :
Depreciation and amortisation s s 23,335 30,791
Interest income FBUA (13,067) (8,200)
Interest on lease liabilities HEAERE 4,953 5,667
Loss on disposal of property, BEWE  RERBIVREE
plant and equipment 6 1,283
Loss on disposal of intangible asset BRE B EENEIR 76 -
Reversal of provision for ER TR A R T
reinstatement cost = (1,575)
15,303 7,186
Changes in working capital: BEEEE
(Increase)/decrease in deposits, e BUERR R IEMNFOE
receivables and prepayments (&) R (9,827) 9,062
Increase in accounts payable, FERTBRR - FEET B R EAD
accruals and other liabilities B {EIE N 1,065 172
Increase/(decrease) in deferred EEWAIE I, CRi)
income 188,765 (25,623)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from KETHELENERES
operating activities TN (R S48 195,306 (9,203)
Cash flows from investing activities  REFHELENRESHRE
Proceeds from the disposal of property, BRE¥ZE « &E R EM AU
plant and equipment 6 1
Payment for the purchase of property,  BEE W - & R=M 08
plant and equipment (2,145) (26,480)
Payment for the purchase of intangible & & . & & FIE
asset (4,786) (117)
Payment for the office reinstatement MAEERIIERIE = (2,115)
Interest received BEUF B 13,334 8,144
Decrease in time deposits with original /& ZI|Ef ] ZR=Z{EAM
maturities over three months EHTF SO = 12,500
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from RETHELENERES
investing activities T R 258 6,409 (8,067)
Cash flows from financing activites ~ BEZFBELENESRE
Lease payments FAERR (20,748) (17,500)
Net cash outflow from financing BEEBELNRERHFE
activities (20,748) (17,500)
Net increase/(decrease) in cashand HRE&RBESZEYE M,
cash equivalents ORi) F%58 180,967 (34,770)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April  HR4B1BMBRERRESZEEY 223,672 258,442
Cash and cash equivalents at ASANNANRERIRESEEY
31 March 18 404,639 223,672
The notes on pages 93 to 117 form part of these financial statements. FIREE117ENMFARMBRERN—F D -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(@)

General Information

The Accounting and Financial Reporting Council (AFRC) is an
independent body established under the Accounting and Financial
Reporting Council Ordinance (Cap. 588) (AFRCO). Its office address
is 10th Floor, Two Taikoo Place, 979 King’s Road, Quarry Bay, Hong
Kong.

Principal Activities
The functions of the AFRC are:

i) registration and recognition of public interest entities (PIE) auditors,
issuing practising certificates to Certified Public Accountants
(CPAs), and registration of firm names, firms and corporate
practices;

i) regulating PIE auditors, CPAs (Practising) practising accountancy
on their own account in their own names, CPA firms and corporate
practices (Practice Units) through inspection, investigation and
disciplinary sanction;

i) regulating CPAs through investigation and disciplinary sanction;

iv) carrying out enquiries into non-compliance with regulatory
requirements for financial reports in relation to listed entities;

v)  overseeing the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants’
(HKICPA'’s) performance in its specified functions;

vi)  acting as a regulatory body in respect of accounting professionals
under the Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing
Ordinance (Cap. 615); and

vi)  taking any steps that the AFRC considers appropriate to promote
and support the development of the accountancy profession.

Statement of Compliance and Basis of
Preparation of the Financial Statements

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS
Accounting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB).

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BB ERAR P RE

HZE2025%3A31HILEFE

(2RNAETTIIR)

(@)

—RER

S RUBERR (MR RRE(ETR
B TS EE R BAEHI) (555885 ) A 37 K938 3 14
o HtERii AR SHREREBI79
SRS 101 ©

ETEREH
S BHBAES

) ARNEEEREBEN MR - @
BEIMBELREEE  UREBHAE
T - FHAREAE A

i) EBEER - FERLERED  REAR
MamBRZEAM  UETMEEEa
S RENAESEED - FEHENER

IS E AN CTE - VAR

iy BERFAEHLREDRE DR

v WEPERMERE TR TR
PRI TER ¢

vV BEESSHEASETEERRE
3

V) REBGTEEZRBMD FELHEK
B> (F615%8) EESHHEALHE
BRI R

Vi) RERHRRAEENTASE R
EWTIERIAEEOYE -

EREARMBRREREE
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(b)

(c)

Statement of Compliance and Basis of
Preparation of the Financial Statements (continued)

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis, under the historical cost convention and are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the functional currency of the AFRC.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. There are no critical accounting judgements involved in the
application of IFRSs by the AFRC. There are also no key assumptions
concerning the future, or other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the next
year.

Certain comparative figures have been restated to conform to the
current year presentation of the financial statements.

Adoption of new/revised IFRSs

IASB has issued certain new or revised IFRSs that are first effective for
the current accounting period of the AFRC. None of them has significant
impact on the accounting policies of the AFRC.

The AFRC has not applied any new or revised IFRSs that are not yet
effective for the current accounting period. The AFRC is in the progress
of making an assessment of the expected impact of these amendments,
new standards and interpretations in the period of initial application.
So far, it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a
significant impact on the financial statements.
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B R FRak

Levy Income HEUWA
2025 2024
HK$°000 HK$'000
T8 FHBT
Transaction levy RBHE 114,043 68,123
PIE levy NERHFEBRYUE 30,690 31,252
PIE Auditor levy NB D EEZBAHE 27,676 27,456
172,409 126,831

The transaction levy and PIE levy are collected by The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (SEHK) on behalf of the AFRC. The AFRC
recognises transaction levy in the statement of comprehensive income
when the leviable transactions occur based on the consideration for
the sale and purchase by the seller and purchaser of securities each
at a rate of 0.00015% of the consideration. Amounts recognised are
determined based on returns provided to the AFRC by SEHK. The
AFRC recognises the levy receivable from a PIE for a calendar year
when leviable, when it is probable that the levy will be received and
when a reliable estimate can be made. The PIE levy is required under
the AFRCO to be calculated at 4.2% of the prepaid annual listing fee
as determined by the SEHK. A reliable estimate of the levy receivable
from a PIE can be made when it has been determined by the SEHK and
communicated to the AFRC. The PIE levy income is recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
calendar year to which it relates.

EBBARIERAR BRMRET D
WBRZRSHUBEBMARNEEEHE - 0B
SHEREAHER IRIEEFEETNEE
B R (E0.00015% R 4R E WA KFER
RHHE - EMREHAREBIIESHB
RIEMPARKET - SUBETERIIHE
M EH A RN AGEABFHRE R
BH = BRBERNEE - REBE(EHETH
EmBMEO) - ARN = ERBHBARER
FrEENSFEA LI MERNI 2% TE - B
DB EREERGEN A S2h TR B AT
BEITRSYREBEEL - BBRARE
AN AEFIRERETELRABMARER -
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4. Levy Income (continued)
The levies for Registered and Recognized PIE Auditors are collected
directly by the AFRC. The AFRC recognises the levy receivable from a
PIE Auditor for a calendar year when leviable, when it is probable that
the levy will be received and when a reliable estimate can be made. The
levy receivable from a PIE Auditor is required under the AFRCO to be

calculated based on:

i) the number of PlEs for which the PIE Auditor is carrying out,
as at 31 December of the preceding calendar year, a Specified
Engagement as defined in the AFRCO, at HK$6,155 per
engagement (or a minimum levy of HK$2,000 if there are no

Specified Engagements); and

i) 0.147% of the total remuneration paid to the PIE Auditor, in the
preceding calendar year, by the PIEs for which the PIE Auditor

carried out Specified Engagements.

A reliable estimate of the levy receivable from a PIE Auditor can be
made when a return of Specified Engagements and payments received
from PIEs in the calendar year has been received by the AFRC from the
PIE Auditor. The PIE Auditor levy income is recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the calendar year

to which it relates.

5. Grant Income

HEBWA ()

MR R R RS B BB ES R
SMRERWE - 2 REMREIIBER
AEHA AR AIRBABFHERE AR
MR BB EEEE - RIB(EAH K
MEERBDIED) - BRARF R EREZE
ERE BB RIRA T I RETE

) FAUTHANARFIZREENEE
RE—BREFNI2A318 » AFRF
BB AZEREIT (T A
BESRBIEA) FTEEMIERER -
818 B A6,155/8 7T (3L 037 & 45 A7 18
B BISE#EA2,00087T) : &

i) EL—EAEF  ARFRERRAR
I B T A M T ER T
(3 F ZAXBED BB 2£90.147% ©

BN A Z NG B R ZBMBEN A AT
)N S NSRS Lo Gl
SRATE B B R RN REHEL - ARA &S
ERZEEIBERAEERBANABEFRE
BENFABARIER -

BHIWA

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Grant income AR A 9,936 58,318

In August 2019 and June 2024, the AFRC received a grant of
HK$400 million and HK$200 million from the Government, respectively.
The grant is utilised to cushion the AFRC against shortfall from
operations. There were no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies

attached to the grant.

The grant is recognised as deferred income in the statement of financial
position initially and is recognised as income on a systematic basis in
the statement of comprehensive income over the periods in which the
AFRC recognises as expenses the related costs, including depreciation

on capital expenditure, for which the grant is intended to compensate.
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Licence Fee Income and Application Fee

Income

The AFRC exempted the application/licence fees for the issuing (or
renewal) of a practising certificate, registration (or renewal of the
registration) of a firm name, a firm or a corporate practice for one
year from 1 October 2022, and has started collecting such fees since
1 October 2023.

Licence fee income is recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income on a straight-line basis over the calendar year to which it relates.

Application fee income is recognised at a point in time on:

) completion of assessment for the the application of a registered or
recognised PIE auditor by the AFRC; and

i) completion of assessment for the applications of a practising

certificate, registration of a firm name, a firm or a corporate
practice.

Other Income

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R

JRRERBARBRFEERBA

E2022F10A1HE - €Y RERELNE
FHE - AMEREBHIEE  EHALH
¥EEMERETRRERA—F - WH20234F
1051 B BFHIAEE -

JERE MUAERBE QB FEABREELR
BWARTHER °
HEE BB ARIA TR B#R -

) BERBEITREMREMKER A RAR
MR BEBZBERRITRTE &

i) SNEEE  FEHAAE - FHATN
SRR AT o

HAWA

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Interest income FBUTA 13,067 8,200
Recovery of costs of investigations FEK AU E 100 25
Others Aty 338 —
13,505 8,225

Interest income was earned from time deposits and savings account.
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest
method.

Recovery of costs of investigations is recognised once the disciplinary
decision becomes finalised and is receivable by the AFRC.

MEWARABERAEKREHEETK - FEWK
ARRERA AR BT EEER -

ARRBR IR — IR HETE S M B AT B R%
FERANE LG IRIER
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8. Staff Costs 8. BEIMA

98

2025 2024

HK$°000 HK$’'000

FEx FAET

Salaries, variable pay and bonuses N - FEBE RIEA 159,300 144,198
MPF contributions B AT S HER 14,053 5,011
Staff recruitment expenses HHEEITWH 1,394 6,464
Medical and life insurance BB M AFRR 4,477 4,080
Staff training and development B THIIREEER 746 562
Others A 1,887 1,894
181,857 162,209

Salaries, variable pay, bonuses and paid annual leave are accrued in
the period in which the employees rendered the associated services.
Bonuses are recognised when the AFRC has a present legal or
constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past
events and a reliable estimate can be made.

Contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund (MPF) scheme under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap. 485) in
Hong Kong are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered services entitling them to the contributions. Contributions are
made based on 10 percent of the employees’ gross salaries (2024
5 percent). The assets of the MPF scheme are held separately from
those of the AFRC, in an independently administered fund. The
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF scheme, except for the employer additional voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the AFRC if an employee leaves
employment prior to the contributions vesting fully, subject to vesting
scale of the MPF Scheme.

The above staff costs included the emoluments of the executive
directors as stated in note 9.
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9. Directors’ Emoluments 9. EXME
2025
Directors’ Variable MPF
fee Salaries pay contributions Total
M
20 £ FaMe  ARESHER ok
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000
FHET THET FHET THET THET
Executive Director HiTES
Janey Lai, CEQ' BRE - TR = 653 476 5,238
- 653 476 5,238
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Kelvin Wong, SBS, JP, A REHEE
Former Chairman? At pIERE? 630 = = 630
David Sun, GBS, JP, Chairman® ~ REEEL @ £ XHEE
AT@t - £ 210 - - 210
Roger Best, MH, JP Bomd - KERE - AFat 240 = = 240
Johnny Chan* B e 120 = = 120
Andrew Fung, SBS, JP BER  BEHEE  KFEL 240 - - 240
Eugene Fung, SC, JP BER - BRAARM  KEHT 240 = = 240
Stephen Hung, MH RERE KB 240 = = 240
Miranda Kwok, JP FHF - KEaL 240 - - 240
Rosita Lee e 240 = = 240
Stephen Lee THE 240 = - 240
Deborah Leung? Pl 120 = = 120
James Lin WIRF 240 = = 240
Keith Lui BN 240 - = 240
Phyllis Mo* B 120 - = 120
Francis Siu wiEN 240 = = 240
Peter Wan, MH FRE REFE 240 = = 240
Edward Yuen [ 91 240 = = 240
4,080 = = 4,080
Total directors’ emoluments BEEWS 4,080 653 476 9,318

! Appointed as CEO and Executive Director with effect from 9 April 2024

2 Retired from the Board upon the expiry of his term as the Chairman on

31 December 2024

8 Appointed as Chairman with effect from 1 January 2025
4 Appointed with effect from 1 October 2024
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9. Directors’ Emoluments (continued)

9. EEXME®

2024
Directors’ Variable MPF
fee Salaries pay  contributions Total
5 il
EETirn M FEME  AEEHE fat]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THI THL THT THL THET
Executive Director HiTES
Marek Grabowski, former CEQ'  §577 » AIfTEARE - 2,471 309 - 2,780
Janey Lai, Acting CEQ? BEE - BETHEE? - 1,648 279 9% 2,023
- 4,119 588 96 4,803
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Kelvin Wong, SBS, JP, Chairman ~ &X# » JREFIZE
AV@t - £ 840 - - - 840
Roger Best, MH, JP BmE - REEE - ATHL 240 - - - 240
Andrew Fung, BBS, JP* BER MEHER - KFELe 120 - - - 120
Eugene Fung, SC B - ARKERD 240 - - - 240
Stephen Hung, MH RER KEFE 240 - - - 240
Miranda Kwok, JP I KFat 240 - - - 240
Rosita Lee Z{m 240 - - - 240
Stephen Lee FHE 240 - - - 240
James Lin® MIRFS 120 - - - 120
Keith Lui X0 240 - - - 240
Francis Siu EHEG: 240 - - - 240
Peter Wan, MH FRE KBS 240 - - - 240
Edward Yuen [ 3 240 - - - 240
3,480 - - - 3,480
Total directors’ emoluments BEEME 3,480 4,119 588 9% 8,283
! Retired on 11 October 2023 1 R2023F10A11HIEE
2 Appointed as Acting CEO and Executive Director with effect from 2 H2023F10 A 12 BB Z X REEITHRES K
12 October 2023 TEE
3 Appointed with effect from 1 October 2023 3 H2023F10 A1 BEERT
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10. Premises Expenses 10. YIEXZ
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAET
Rates, management fees and i BERERTEAE
air-conditioning charge 4,129 5,914
Reversal of provision for reinstatement cost 18 R T 12 5k 728 ¢ [a) - (1,579)
Others EAh 569 567
4,698 4,906

11.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In November 2022, the AFRC entered into a lease agreement for a
new office at Two Taikoo Place. The non-cancellable period of the
lease is from 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2027, with an option to renew
a further term of three years. The lease agreements for the old office at
the Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong ended on
31 August 2023.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the old office was reinstated at
the end of the lease term, and a reversal of provision for reinstatement
cost of HK$1,575,000 is recognised (note 21).

The depreciation of right-of-use assets is included in the depreciation
expenses in note 15 to the financial statements.

H2022F 11 A + SRR & T Z B
AEF M —HHEERH - TAIEGEEESA
20234 A1HE202743A31H » A&
IEHISF - IR BB 2R/ ANER183FHA MA
DR ERAERE W ENR 202358 431 HE
5o

HZE2024F3A31HILFE  ERAEHHE
HiERISEIR - WHERER T2 AR H 7
[611,575,000/8 ¢ (fF5E21) ©

EREEETERT AMEHRKRM T T
EER-

Corporate Communications Expenses 1. B ERX L
2025 2024
HK$°000 HK$’000
FBT FiT
Promotion and public education HERAEHE 177 173
Events T 8 60
Publications tH b T4 275 373
460 606
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12. Other Operating Expenses

2025 2024

HK$°000 HK$’'000

FEx FAET

Information and systems services EEES il 12,094 10,141

Conference and duty visits EEMER 3,390 1,322

Printing, stationery and other expenses FTED « SCAREARR 2,461 3,348

Professional liability insurance BEEHEFRR 657 633

Loss on disposal of intangible asset EEEFEEMNEIE 76 -

Office equipment and furniture expensed PR R &ME M REFI X 10 12
Loss on disposal of property, plant and BEWE - RERBIMREE

equipment 6 1,283

18,694 16,739

In accordance with section 19 of the AFRCO, the financial statements of
the AFRC are audited by the Director of Audit. No fee is charged for this

service.

13. Taxation

Pursuant to section 16 of the AFRCO, the AFRC is exempt from taxation
under the Inland Revenue Ordinance (Cap. 112).

13. {18

L -
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B &
14. Property, Plant and Equipment 14. Y3 ~ BRERB[M
Office Computers
furniture and IT Other office Leasehold
and fixtures  infrastructure equipment  improvements Total
PAE RERRE Hitr HE
RAREKE b=t MWAERME MEEE ok
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
THER TR TR TR TERT
Cost AR
At 1 April 2023 2023F4 718 5,043 6,577 1,710 9,347 22,677
Additions BA 2,753 3,413 128 19,808 26,102
Disposals RE (2,592) (1,322) (141) (9,347) (13,402)
At 31 March 2024 202453A317 5,204 8,068 1,697 19,808 35,377
At 1 April 2024 202454818 5,204 8,668 1,697 19,808 35,377
Additions BA - 1,692 64 - 1,756
Disposals RE - (W) (20) - (27)
At 31 March 2025 R2025%3831H 5,204 10,353 1,741 19,808 37,106
Accumulated depreciation ~ EiHHTE
At 1 April 2023 2023F4 /1R (1,470) (4,018) (598) (7,529) (13,615)
Charge for the year FRATH (1,185) 1,511) (242) (4,011) (6,949)
Written back on disposals i B[ 1,726 933 111 9,347 12,117
At 31 March 2024 202453A317 (929) (4,590) (729) (2,193 (8,447)
At 1 April 2024 202454718 (929) (4,596) (729) (2,193 (8,447
Charge for the year FAZM (519) (1,734) (244) (2,936) (5,433)
Written back on disposals i B[ - 1 14 - 15
At 31 March 2025 202538311 (1,448) (6,329) (959) (5,129) (13,865)
Net book value SREFEE
At 31 March 2025 202538311 3,756 4,024 782 14,679 23,241 % i
w
At 31 March 2024 2024534311 4,275 4,072 968 17,615 26,930
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14. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any, except that items costing
less than HK$5,000 are expensed when incurred. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for its intended use.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment over its estimated useful
life after considering its estimated residual value. The respective useful
lives are as follows:

Office furniture and fixtures 10 years
Computers and IT infrastructure 3to 5 years
Other office equipment 7 years

Leasehold improvements Over the remaining lease term

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at the reporting date.

In February 2023, the AFRC changed its estimate of the remaining useful
life of certain furniture, which would not be relocated to the new office
in July 2023, to 5 months. This change in useful life has increased the
depreciation by HK$64 1,000 for the year ended 31 March 2024. There is
no impact on the depreciation for the year ended 31 March 2025.

Property, plant and equipment are derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. The gain
or loss arising from the derecognition is determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset, and is recognised in surplus or deficit in the period in
which the asset is derecognised.

At the reporting date, the AFRC assesses whether there is any indication
that an item of property, plant and equipment may be impaired or a
previously recognised impairment loss no longer exists or may have
decreased. Following this year’s review, no impairment loss has been
recognised (2024 nil).
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15. Leases

The lease for the AFRC’s office at Two Taikoo Place (note 10) are
recognised as right-of-use assets with corresponding liabilities
recognised at the date at which the leased asset was available for use
by the AFRC.

The lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the remaining
lease payments less lease incentives receivable, discounted using the
AFRC’s incremental borrowing rate at the commencement date. Lease
payments are allocated between the liability and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to the statement of comprehensive income over
the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The right-of-use
asset is depreciated over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

At the commencement date of the lease, the AFRC assessed that it was
reasonably certain to exercise the option to extend the lease by three
years at the end of the non-cancellable period of the lease and the lease
term was determined to be seven years. The incremental borrowing rate
applied to the lease at the commencement date was 5.125%. The cost
of reinstatement of the leased premises at the end of the lease term was
also capitalised as part of the cost of right-of-use asset (note 21).

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R

15.18E

RETG ZERAENEY 10 REEE
ErNHEV REMAE A REERREMREE
B UERHBERE -

ﬁﬁ’]iﬁﬁﬁi : I?;zf'fﬁﬁ gV REE
BEMXMIR - HEFEEVEEAHAE
B ERA - BERARBHAB KA K
ARG - Ut ES SR A EESRNEEE

BRI - FREEER AR E ORI
.

REQRGBES - Y REFHRE - RAH
BEREENT A BMEHEATARITERE
BEHECRIFREFTHEHBRTE - RFH
HHHERANEEHENEEEGEN XS
5.125% - REMTHAREEMENERT
RRATEMEREREEERAN 3D
(M5E21) »

Accounting and Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2024-25

SRV KERRF 2024-25F 3

_
<
O =
z
<
Z 4
[

105



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YRR e

15. Leases (continued) 15. HE (@)

Buildings
BT
HK$’000
Right-of-use assets FAEEE FHET
Cost B
At 1 April 2023 7202344 A1 A 44,458
Additions A 120,151
Expiry of lease agreements HEHED (44,458)
At 31 March 2024 720243 A31H 120,151
At 1 April 2024 20244451 A 120,151
Additions A -
At 31 March 2025 1202563H31H 120,151
Accumulated depreciation ZitHire
At 1 April 2023 7202344818 (37,996)
Charge for the year FRZH (23,626)
Expiry of lease agreements HE =D 44,458
At 31 March 2024 FA20244E3 4318 (17,164)
At 1 April 2024 F20244E4 A1 A (17,164)
Charge for the year FAZH (17,164)
At 31 March 2025 1202553H31H (34,328)
Net book value BREFE
At 31 March 2025 1202553H31H 85,823
At 31 March 2024 H2024%F3A31H 102,987
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15. Leases (continued) 15. HE (@)
2025 2024
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Lease liabilities HEARE
Current RE 16,605 15,795
Non-current IERE 75,369 91,974
91,974 107,769
2025 2024
HK$°000 HK$’000
T FET
Maturity profile of lease liabilities HESBE(GEHNWRERRESRE

(contractual undiscounted cash flows):  FYZEIERHRR :
— Within 12 months —12{ AR 20,748 20,748
— After 12 months but within 24 months —12{8 & =248 A A 20,748 20,748
— After 24 months but within 36 months —24{E B2 =361E A A 20,748 20,748
— After 36 months but within 48 months —361E Az =488 A A 20,748 20,748
— After 48 months but within 60 months — 4818 B2 =608 A A 20,748 20,748
— After 60 months —B0fE A% = 20,748
103,740 124,488

Rent free period has been taken into account in the maturity profile of

the lease liabilities.

SEHC KR AHERBENIEMOR -

2025 2024

HK$°000 HK$’000

FBT FiT

Interest on lease liabilities HESERE (4,953) (5,667)
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15. Leases (continued) 15. HE (@)
Changes in the lease liabilities and the reconciliation of the liabilities HEEBEEYRELEMAGHNAEY
arising from financing activities: B :
Lease liabilities
HeEas
HK$’000
FHET
At 1 April 2023 7202344818 7,046
Non-cash changes: IS EE)
Increase in lease liability relating to new lease EHEFHENHESELM 112,556
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 5,667
Financing cash flows: RMERESRE
Lease payments MENR (17,500)
At 31 March 2024 R2024%F3A31H 107,769
At 1 April 2024 720244418 107,769
Non-cash changes: SEIR & E) ¢
Interest on lease liabilities HEaERNE 4,953
Financing cash flows: RERERE
Lease payments MENR (20,748)
At 31 March 2025 20253831 H 91,974
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16. Intangible Asset BE&EE
Computer
software
BB
HK$’000
FET
Cost 2%
At 1 April 2023 7202344 818 980
Additions A 117
At 31 March 2024 M2024F3A31H 1,097
At 1 April 2024 20244451 1,097
Additions A 4,786
Disposals BB (117)
At 31 March 2025 20253531 H 5,766
Accumulated amortisation g £
At 1 April 2023 2023454 51 A (620)
Charge for the year FAZH (216)
At 31 March 2024 R2024F3A31H (836)
At 1 April 2024 R2024F481H (836)
Charge for the year FAZH (738)
Written back on disposals B R o) 1
At 31 March 2025 12025%3H31H (1,533)
Net book value BREVFE
At 31 March 2025 A2025%3H31H 4,233
At 31 March 2024 20243 A31H 261

This represents the development cost of various IT systems.

Intangible asset is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment loss, if any. Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis
to write off the costs of the IT systems over their estimated useful lives
of 5 years after considering their estimated residual values. Amortisation

commences when IT systems are available for use.

Residual value, useful life and amortisation method are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at least at the reporting date.

AR EERR R RGRFRERA o

BIVEERKAR R 5 H SOR E R 18 (40
BN - #ETIRERAM KRGS FN T
AERHa T EEBEGRER  NERE
BT HG T - B EMBEER
A B EERT

R AEAES RBESEE SRR R
EHRATIRE - RIFHIEEBE -
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16.

17.

Intangible Asset (continued)

Intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use. The gain or loss arising
from the derecognition is determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in surplus or deficit in the period in which the asset is
derecognised.

At the reporting date, the AFRC assesses whether there is any indication
that an item of intangible asset may be impaired or a previously
recognised impairment loss no longer exists or may have decreased.
Following this year’s review, no impairment loss has been recognised
(2024 nil).

6. BFEE (18

BREENGEXRRBBERZEETE
EERRACEM b 42 L RERR - MR IERERR X
BEEANEMNAFSRBR(ZEERAE
ERGTIRFR(NE) MRE S ERNER
BEE)  RZBERIERMET AR

RREBH - @M RFEES HBEEMTR
BREVEERR HBERE  SUBEERR
HEBRREETBEFEXDKRD - &KX
FEERHEK  REEREMRERRE (2024
FoE) o

Deposits, Receivables and Prepayments 17. 12 - BRERR R FEITRRIE
2025 2024
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Accounts receivable JFEULBR 3R 18,431 9,744
Deposits e 6,069 6,129
Interest receivable FEURFI B, 845 1,112
Other receivable HAb U GRIA 467 194
Prepayments TEN A
— Implementation services fees and — BRI E A LRI &
licence fees 7,492 6,996
— Medical and life insurance —BENABRE 1,182 875
— Staff benefits —BIEH 27 25
— Others —EAb 3,468 3,346
37,981 28,421
Less: non-current portion B IEmENER D (9,672) (6,069)
Current portion mEhER D 28,309 22 352

The accounts receivable relates to transaction levy, PIE levy and PIE
Auditor levy. The AFRC does not provide an ageing analysis of accounts
receivable as the balance as at 31 March 2025 is expected to receive in

a short period of time.

FEYSRARER ZHE - AR m
REMN B BB HEGR
F3A31 AR B
Bl R AR A AR R BR R D AT

o E\

lid

X

EREEN
HATE2025

5 HEh

o

Deposits as at 31 March 2025 mainly represent refundable rental
deposit for the AFRC’s office at Two Taikoo Place, please see note 10
for details.

Prepayments for implementation services fees and licence fees as at
31 March 2025 mainly represent the implementation cost for the
AFRC’s IT systems.
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18. Cash and Cash Equivalents 18. RERBFEZEEY

2025 2024

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHBT

Cash on hand FHEBAe 14 5

Current accounts Y EFRHER 6,779 11,199

Savings account HBEFX 44,746 36,768
Time deposits with original maturities REIEIB T BB =1EA

within three months #I5E BRI R 353,100 175,700

404,639 223,672

The effective interest rates on the short-term time deposits at
31 March 2025 were between 3.43% to 3.72% (2024: 4.23% to 4.50%)

MN2025%F3A31H @ RITHAH R EH T H
TFHROERFERNRAE3.43%%E3.72% (2024

per annum. F 1 4.23%%4.50%) °
19. Accounts Payable, Accruals and Other 19. FE{TERF - EsTEAREME
Liabilities &
2025 2024
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FBT FiT
Accounts payable and accruals (financial)  JEfEERMEAER (SRAE) 10,253 9,581
Accounts payable and accruals JERTBR R X FERTE A
(non-financial) €1 5=15)) 207 198
Other liabilities HEmaE 17 22
10,477 9,801

Other liabilities include the application and licence fee income received
in advance.

HitBERREBERNEFERLERERK
A ©
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20. Deferred Income

20. IEFEUR A

2025 2024
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
At 1 April 2024/1 April 2023 R20245F4 18 /202354 A1H 203,673 229,296
Grants received from the Government B TR E B 200,000 —
PIE levy income for 2025/2024 2025, 2024 F AR FIzEE L
BERA 30,276 30,844
PIE auditor levy income for 2025/2024 2025, 2024 F N BF|HEEE
IZEEMAE A 26,857 27,724
Licence fee income for 2025/2024 2025, 2024 KRR B FR A 42,880 43,127
Recognised as grant income in the year ERAFANERA (9,936) (58,318)
Recognised as PIE levy income in the year ERAFRNARFEEEEEIA (30,738) (31,196)
Recognised as PIE auditor levy income HERAFRNARHEERE
in the year ZEEVEERA (27,509) (27,022)
Recognised as licence fee income TR AT RMEIRE R
in the year (43,065) (10,782)
At 31 March 2025/31 March 2024 R202553 318 /202443 A31H 392,438 203,673
Less: Amount estimated to be recognised i : {HETHIR —F RIERA
as income within one year WARE5E (238,759) (139,287)
Amount classified under non-current DEREREEESTE
liabilities 153,679 64,386
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Representing: K&
Current mE 238,759 139,287
Non-current IERH 153,679 64,386
392,438 203,673

The AFRC charges licence fees for renewal of practising certificates,
and renewal of registration of firm names, firms or corporate practices
on a calendar-year basis, each of which is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the calendar year in which it relates (note 6). The deferred
income mainly relates to the licence fees received in advance which
represent the unearned licence fee income for the period from 1 April to

31 December of a year.
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20.

21.

22.

Deferred Income (continued) 20.

Significant changes in the balances of deferred income that were in
relation to annual licence fees are shown below:

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R

EFEULA (48)
B IR AR B P BB IE A RS ARV B R

2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FAET
Increase due to advance payments Fa R UL ERFE A FRIE M 3 hn
received during the year 42,880 43,127
Decrease due to recognition of AR ENERERERRA
licence fee income during the year R (43,065) (10,782)
Provision for Reinstatement Cost 21. BRI AR S

In accordance with the lease agreement of Two Taikoo Place, the AFRC
is required to restore the office premises to the original condition at the
end of the lease term. A provision has been recognised for the estimated
expenditure. The cost has been capitalised as part of the cost of the
related right-of-use asset which is depreciated over the lease term
(note 15). For the old office, it was reinstated at the end of the lease
term on 31 August 2023 (note 10) and the payment for the office
reinstatement of HK$2,115,000 is included in the statement of cash
flows for the year ended 31 March 2024.

BEALH —ERER:E  eMRERES
EEBERAZTERZERANMR B
HREG I LELEE - BEREAEER
tEBRBERREERAN—3 D » TR
FAEAAREHRITE (H15) - ERAZTER
202348 A31 B A= mAFER (FisE10) -
2,115,000 TR M A EER TERHFIELD
BIEEHZE2024F3A31BIEFEMBE SR
X

2025 2024

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

At 1 April 2024/1 April 2023 R2024F4 F1H /202354818 7,500 3,690

Additions N — 7,500

Utilisations A - (2,119)

Reversal #[El = (1,575)

At 31 March 2025/31 March 2024 R202553 A31 8, 202443 A31H 7,500 7,500
Funds 22. &%

General fund represents the accumulated operating surplus of the
AFRC’s recurrent funding.

—RESNIEGMRREEUEESHRAEE
BER
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23. Financial Instruments
The carrying amounts of financial instruments by category are as

23. €T A
FECMTANRESEMT -

follows:
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial assets SRIEE
At amortised cost: IR SR AT B
Deposits and interest receivable e R EWH S
— Current — R 845 1172
— Non-current — 3B ED 6,069 6,069
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBLEEY 404,639 223,672
411,553 230,913
Financial liabilities A=
At amortised cost: R SHR AR TIBR
Accounts payable and accruals (financial)  JETERF M EFTE A (78 10,253 9,581
Lease liabilities HEAE
— Current —RE 16,605 15,795
— Non-current —IERE 75,369 91,974
102,227 117,350

The carrying amounts of the AFRC’s financial assets and financial
liabilities approximate their fair values as at 31 March 2025 and
31 March 2024.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement
of financial position when the AFRC becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of an instrument. They are initially measured at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method except for lease liabilities as stated in note 15 to the financial
statements. No transaction costs have been incurred.
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23. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial assets

The objective of holding financial assets is to collect contractual cash
flows, which are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding. The recognition of a loss allowance for
expected credit losses on a financial asset measured at amortised cost is
based on the probability of default upon initial recognition and on-going
assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk. The AFRC assesses whether the credit risk of a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition by comparing the risk of
default occurring on the financial asset at the reporting date with the risk
of default at the date of initial recognition. Each financial asset is assessed
on an individual basis and the AFRC takes into account both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

No provision for impairment loss for the financial assets was made at
31 March 2025 as the financial assets were considered to be of low
credit risk and the expected credit losses of these financial assets was
minimal.

A financial asset is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the asset have expired or the AFRC has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset.

Financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the relevant obligation is
discharged, is cancelled or expires.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R

23. €T A ®)

TREE
RETREENENTURDERRERE -
HZEREREBERBENAE RREREHA
B o RIEHERRRES BRE LN TG
REFBEFASHMEOTEN - SAERE
EAE AT ENTAREEBERAEE
B e RBAKEREENRS AHIH
R AR R A TER A HE RO
SETHE - U eREENERRRS
VIARERIARERFREIE - BIHSHEE
VEFETHE - SMREREAE RSN
FEREWERH  BREUEKBRLESZTE
BERARIAENE R EFERIEIEER

M2026%3A31H @ WEREBEERERS
BAHERYE - DESREERBAERERR
REAZELHEENEHEEBENTHE
e

Mt EEEYCESRENENC 2 MM
R B EEMBRENELT 2300 E R = &
R RTREESRRLER -

THEaR
TRBENEENEBER - BUSSE 8RR
%gltﬁggfu °
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24. Financial Risks

(@

(b)

Credit risk
The AFRC’s credit risk is primarily attributable to deposits and interest
receivable, time deposits and other bank balances.

The Board approved an investment policy which, subject to other limits,
only allows the AFRC to place deposits with licensed banks in Hong
Kong having regard to their credit rating. Those funds are deposited with
banks that are rated P-1 by Moody’s or A-1 by S&P. The policy also
limits the amount placed with each bank and the maximum duration the
deposit is placed, and specifies the minimum number of banks to be
placed at any time in order to manage its credit risk.

The portfolio of deposits is managed and monitored to ensure it meets
the investment policy with monthly reports submitted to the Finance and
Corporate Affairs Committee and bi-monthly reports to the Board. As a
result, the AFRC is not exposed to significant credit risk. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of the
financial assets as set out in the statement of financial position.

While other financial assets are subject to the impairment requirements,
the AFRC has estimated that their expected credit losses are minimal
and considers that no loss allowance is required.

Liquidity risk

The AFRC has a strong cash position and therefore has a very low
level of liquidity risk. The AFRC maintains sufficient levels of cash and
cash equivalents and manages its working capital by carefully reviewing
forecasts on a regular basis. All financial liabilities except lease liabilities
were due to be repaid within three months (2024: three months) from
the reporting date. The maturity profile of the lease liabilities is disclosed
in note 15.
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25.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R

Financial Risks (continued) 24. £ELERE (B
Market risk (c) miZEK
Currency risk R
The AFRC receives its income and settles its expenses in Hong Kong SYRWARZEHAEET  MABERE
dollars. Its financial assets and financial liabilities are all denominated in ERERBEHUETREMN - ALEHB
Hong Kong dollars. Hence, the AFRC is not exposed to any currency WA EE R
risk.
Interest rate risk FIZm f
The AFRC'’s interest bearing assets mainly comprise funds placed in SHRNENEBEEETE AETE XA TEE
time deposits with fixed interest rates. The AFRC is subject to interest Fak - EmBEREREE - SHBBEEEF =
rate risk where a volatile market exists. This risk is managed by having b - @ REREEE TRBEGERNER
several short-term deposits. The AFRC’s exposure to interest rate risk ZREk - 2 REEROFERRER - Fit
is limited and therefore no sensitivity analysis on such risk has been WARE I E R EITRRE DT o
prepared.
Capital Commitments 25, EAREIE
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2025 not provided for in 20253 A31H RIS NIEH
the financial statements were as follows: BRREEARENT
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
F8&T FT
Contracted for EHES 2,113 823
Authorised but not contracted for EERREERETL - -
2,113 823
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COMMITTEES AND PANELS
ZEESREEE

Committees
Seven committees are set up to advise the Board on different affairs of the
AFRC.

Advisory Committee

The Advisory Committee is established under section 10B of the Accounting
and Financial Reporting Council Ordinance. In addition to the Chairman and
CEO of the AFRC, the Committee consists of members appointed by the
Financial Secretary from different stakeholder groups to advise the Board on
matters of policy regarding its regulatory objectives and functions.

Terms of reference
° To advise the AFRC on matters of policy regarding any of its regulatory
objectives and functions.

Membership and attendance at committee meetings during the
12-month period ended 31 March 2025 were as follows:

RiECE
axj - BREMBIRERITHARS 8
L EBREBRYEARRETEFNER TS
PTAEAX - SRR SRR E B IR B
H - REFREHE

SR IBERBIED) F

5 B §
g
W
piil
<t 19
mm

. ?ﬁ@ﬁ#@ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬁ EEEISE A Ee
A RREEE

HZE2025F3A31AM12E A - ZEEERE
REBRBREROT

Dr Kelvin Wong, SBS, JP (Chairman) BREEL - REAEE - KFHL(EE)
Dr David Sun, GBS, JP (Chairmarn)? BREAELT  SEHERE  KTaL(FE)?
Mr Clement Chan, BBS, MH, JP PREFERSTA - INERFEE - LEEE - APt
Ms vy Cheung SRABIR A+

Mr Stephen Fung BEMSTE

Ms Janey Lai (CEO) WERBE LT (7T

Mr Edward Lau BlFmkE

Ms Elizabeth Law, MH, JP EAERL  BEHE - KTt

Mr Patrick Law BEEIREE

Ms Doris Lian, MH B REHE

Mr Low Chee-keong? s A

Mr Webster Ng, JP REGELA - KT 40t

Dr Christopher To (GE=

Ms Flora Wang TR+

Hon Edmund Wong* HkBEZRE!

Ms Daisy Yeung B FL T

Number of meetings: 4 SRNRY 4

The average attendance rate was 93%. R TPHALEERIZ ©

! Dr Kelvin Wong retired as the Chairman of the Advisory Committee on 31 December
2024 upon the expiry of his term as the Chairman of the AFRC.

2 Dr David Sun was appointed as the Chairman of the Advisory Committee on 1 January
2025 upon his appointment as the Chairman of the AFRC.

3 Retired on 31 July 2024.

4 Appointed on 1 August 2024.
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Inspection Committee
The Inspection Committee advises the Board on matters concerning the
inspection function.

Terms of reference

To provide advice on the Operations Manual for Inspection (which
covers areas such as inspection strategy, inspection process and
follow-up actions).

To provide advice on the annual inspection plan, selection mechanism
to determine which firms and engagements are subject to inspection
and guidelines to determine the audit quality rating of a PIE engagement
subject to inspection.

To provide advice, as requested by the Inspection Department, on
inspection findings, audit quality rating or follow-up actions on individual
cases.

To provide advice, as requested by the Inspection Department, on the
extent of publication of inspection findings on individual firms (e.g. to
the audit committee of the related listed entity, or to the public), and the
contents of any such publication.

To provide advice on the annual inspection activity reports of the AFRC
to be approved by the Board.

To perform an annual review (both substantive and procedural) of
the performance of the inspection function by selecting a sample of
completed inspections and provide recommendations on the practices
and procedures of the inspection function.

To provide advice on matters in relation to the inspection function as
requested by the Board from time to time.

COMMITTEES AND PANELS

ZEEREEH
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COMMITTEES AND PANELS

ZEEREEH

Membership and attendance at committee meetings during the #H ZE202563H31BMW12EA R ' ZEEKE

12-month period ended 31 March 2025 were as follows: RERHEENT

Mr Roger Best, MH, JP (Chairman) FNELE - BEBE - KFEHT(EE)

Ms Rosita Lee (Vice-Chairman) MMzt (5/F/E)

Ms Janey Lai (CEO)' RERB L (TTHAAR)

Ms vy Cheung sRABRAZ

Ms Grace Hui FRiEZ +

Dr James C Lin MRFIEL

Mr Keith Lui BN E

Mr William Mak BEFRESE

Mr Francis Siu EHE:P

Dr Peter Wan, MH FIRHEE L KEHE

Mr Stephen Wong TFExkE

Mr Edward Yuen BB o A=

Number of meetings: 6 eEXRY 6

The average attendance rate was 93%. 2EFHLEERIZY

i Appointed on 21 October 2024. 1 2024510 A21 B EZAE -

Investigation and Compliance Committee HAELZE®

The Investigation and Compliance Committee advises the Board on matters FAEZE SR EHEAEREABENSTERNES

concerning the investigation and enquiry functions. AR -

Terms of Reference BESE

e To provide advice and guidance on the development of policies, ®  HRAEREMBRENEEREK - HK - 53
strategies, guidelines and procedures for the operation of the EEFRRHERRIES -

investigation and enquiry functions.

e To provide advice in setting selection criteria, including areas of focus, — ® ERM B mEAENGTIMERENGE

for the financial statements review programme annually. (BIEEZEHE)REER -

e To provide advice on technical matters relating to accounting, auditng ¢ FIELFTEIBERE B RFEXEEN
and professional ethics as identified by staff. Rt EEREER -

e To receive operation reports of the Investigation and Compliance ¢ AEFHEBAEERSE - BEBEM - #HE -
Department, oversee the progress of enquiries, investigations, W R HRRBENEEULREESE

complaints and financial statements reviews and provide R -
recommendation on operational matters.
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To perform an annual review (both substantive and procedural) of the
performance of the complaint, review, investigation and enquiry handling
functions by selecting sample completed cases of:

U)

(i)

(i)

complaints and reviews which are closed without further action;

investigations initiated under the AFRCO which are suspended or
closed without further action or with follow-up action being taken;
and

enquiries conducted by the staff of the Investigation and
Compliance Department which are suspended or closed without
further action or with other follow-up being taken.

To provide advice on matters in relation to the investigation and enquiry
functions as requested by the Board from time to time.

FBME AT ESR - SLEEIRIRER - 26 - 3

COMMITTEES AND PANELS

ZEEREEH

oH]

EREMBENRRETFEEN(BRE
B RIEFER)

U

(i)

(i)

B e ih R A — ST TE IR MR B
(EESE

RIBECE T RMBERE) RFA - &
FPORBIREGE — T RO RIRAETTE
VEEBHEERE K

hESHATRR - TR E R
— HTBRE R R TB N 4
ELIGES

BREEREBRIHRAEREABENER
RHER -

Membership and attendance at committee meetings during the & 202553831 12A MK - ZEEERE

12-month period ended 31 March 2025 were as follows:

REBHEZRNT :

Dr Peter Wan, MH (Chairman)
Mr Stephen Lee (Vice-Chairman)
Mr Andrew Fung, SBS, JP

Mr Stephen Hung, MH

Ms Janey Lai (CEO)"

Prof Phyllis Mo?

Mr Stephen Weatherseed ®

Mr Edward Yuen

FHEEL  KEBHEEFE)
FHELLE(FEZE)

JELRLLE - REFEE - KF#L
RREESE  KERE

WRBL L (TTHAH)

TR B

BRRAES

BrEEsE e

Number of meetings: 4

The average attendance rate was 86%.

! Appointed on 21 October 2024.
2 Appointed on 18 March 2025.

8 Retired on 7 March 2025.

BERE 4
SR TILFER86% °
! 202410 21 BERT -

2 M20255F3 18 HEEAE -

8 H2025F3 A7 HIRATE ©
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COMMITTEES AND PANELS

ZEEREEH

Policy, Registration and Oversight Committee

The Policy, Registration and Oversight Committee advises the Board on
matters concerning policy research and guidance on governance issues,
the registration and recognition of audit practitioners, practice units and PIE
auditors, as well as oversight of the HKICPA’s performance of specified
functions, with the aim of improving the quality of audit and financial reporting.

Terms of reference

To advise the Board on the annual plan of the Policy, Registration and
Oversight Department and oversee the performance of executives to
ensure effective implementation of the approved annual plan.

To provide strategic input and perspective on the current, emerging
and potential issues affecting the quality of financial reporting, audit and
corporate governance for identification and prioritization of research
proposals and other initiatives for promoting the quality of the above
matters.

To consider and advise on research proposals and other initiatives
being undertaken that are conducive to enhancing the quality of
financial reporting, audit and corporate governance and any resultant
publications and thought leadership projects.

To advise on matters in relation to the issue of practising certificates
and registration of firm names, firms and corporate practices under Part
2A of the AFRCO, and the registration and recognition of PIE auditors
under Part 3 of the AFRCO.

To advise the Board on the exercise of the power to impose conditions
regarding the issue and renewal of practising certificates under section
20AAB and section 20AAG of the AFRCO, registration of corporate
practices under section 20AAZZG(3)(a) of the AFRCO, and registration
and recognition of PIE auditors under section 20S and 20ZR of the
AFRCO.

To perform an annual review (both substantive and procedural) of the
performance of the registration and recognition function by selecting
sample completed applications.

To consider and comment upon the report on oversight of the HKICPA’s
performance of functions specified in section 9(b) of the AFRCO
(Specified Functions), including recommendations to the HKICPA on
its performance of Specified Functions, and advise the Board on the
exercise of the power to issue directions to HKICPA under section
10(1A)(c) of the AFRCO.

To perform any other functions as shall be determined by the Board
from time to time.
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Membership and attendance at committee meetings during the
12-month period ended 31 March 2025 were as follows:

COMMITTEES AND PANELS

ZEEREEH

HZE2025F3A31AM12E A - EERRE
REBHERMT

Ms Rosita Lee (Chairman) Fmi L (£/E)

Mr Stephen Lee (Vice Chairman) THEBLEFERE)
Mr Andrew Fung, SBS, JP HERLE - REFIRE - KPPt
Mr Stephen Hung, MH RRB(ETAE - REFE
Ms Janey Lai (CEO)" TR B+ (7B )
Ms Deborah Leung? RG22

Mr Keith Lui B EE

Mr Francis Siu EHEG:P

Mr Paul Smith Paul Smith4t 4

Ms Nancy Tse, JP HFEBRLZ LT - KTFat
Mr Jackson Woo HARER S

Professor Wayne Yu BIEIEHIE

Number of meetings: 4

The average attendance rate was 84%.

! Appointed on 21 October 2024.

2 Appointed on 18 March 2025.

Discipline Committee
The Discipline Committee advises the Board on matters concerning the
disciplinary functions.

Terms of Reference
° To provide comments and observations on the recommendation reports
of the Discipline Department in relation to disciplinary cases.

° To oversee the overall performance of the Discipline Department on an
annual basis.

Membership and attendance at committee meetings during the
12-month period ended 31 March 2025 were as follows:

BB 4
FRFHHEER8A%
! 202410 A21 BERAT -

2 20253 A18HEER AT -

KERSEES
KERIZEENABLEREIBENEERE
ERREMER -

s E

o HAERENSMEBLERSBRNEFRRS
RefE R MBS -

o HARENHNEEBRIETRFEEE -

HZE2025F3A31AM12E A M ZEEERE
REBHERMT

Mr Eugene Fung, SC, JP (Chairman) SRR A - BRKEM - K ¥+ (GFE)
Mr Roger Best, MH, JP FomBSE - RERE - KFMT

Mr Johnny Chan' PR RS A

Mr Stephen Hung, MH BRB(EE - REFE

Ms Janey Lai (CEO)>? RRBE L (TTHAER)?

Mr Stephen Lee THRBSLE

Dr James C Lin MRFIEL

Number of meetings: 4

The average attendance rate was 100%.

! Appointed on 18 March 2025.

2 Appointed on 21 October 2024.

ZHFHIEEEAE100% °
| 202538 18ARE( ¢

2 TA2024F 1021 HEER AT -
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COMMITTEES AND PANELS

ZEEREEH

Finance and Corporate Affairs Committee

The Finance and Corporate Affairs Committee advises the Board on finance,
budgeting, corporate communications, administration and other corporate
matters of the AFRC.

Terms of reference

To advise, review and make recommendations on the development of
policies and procedures relating to finance, administration, information
technology and corporate communications matters.

To review policies and procedures to ensure effective financial and
internal controls.

To review annual financial statements and audit findings, and oversee
the implementation of the audit recommendations.

To review and make recommendations to the Board on the draft annual
budget and forecast, including reviewing and monitoring the actual

performance against budget.

To advise, review and make recommendations on treasury management
and related performance.

To advise, review and make recommendations on the financial

sustainability of the AFRC, including the levels of levy and various fees.

To advise on matters in relation to capital expenditure.

To make recommendations to the Board on the award of the tender for
procurement.

To advise, review and make recommendations on the Information
Technology strategic plans and oversee the execution of the plans.

To formulate strategies for external communications and promotion of
public awareness of the AFRC.

To exercise oversight on the effective implementation of communications
and public promotion strategies.

To consider and review the AFRC’s Investment Policy annually for
Board’s approval.

To consider any matters as requested by the Board from time to time.
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COMMITTEES AND PANELS

ZEEREEH

Membership and attendance at the committee meetings during the & 2025538318 12@RHK - E8E2RE

12-month period ended 31 March 2025 were as follows: RERHEENT

Ms Miranda Kwok, JP (Chairman) T L - KFEHLT(EE)

Mr Francis Siu (Vice-Chairman) BRER LA (BIF/E)

Dr Eva Chan PRAGERE L+

Mr Johnny Chan' PRE ST A

Ms Janey Lai (CEO)? WERBE L L (TTHAEH)?

Mr Richard Tsang SESE

Mr Edward Yuen BrEEs S

Number of meetings: 4 SERXHE 4

The average attendance rate was 96%. 2EFHLEERRIB

1 Appointed on 18 Mar 2025 i TR2025F3 18 AEEAT ©
2 Appointed on 9 April 2024 2 M20245F4 ROHEZAT -
Compensation and Nomination Committee FWRIREEER

The Compensation and Nomination Committee advises the Board on B RIEREE@f A N EREENEELHE
all human resources-related matters and nominations to be made or  BI/B{EHSIEENIE L MES RIS EHER -
recommended by the AFRC.

Terms of reference S E
e To advise, review and make recommendations on human resources o FHANERKE RFELRIEHESEREES
policies, procedures and related issues. R ETEM R HEE -

e To advise, review and make recommendations on the terms and o #E2 TEMBER LGN (BIEE THMERE
conditions of employment for staff, including the structure and level of FoKE)REER - /T RIRMtEE -
staff remuneration.

e  To advise, review and make recommendations on remuneration o FEHMARRHER - ETEM IR HE
packages to ensure competitiveness with the market. & ARSI

e To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration and o FEIEBAES THAEH - B117EF - 209

reappointment (if applicable) of management staff (CEO, Executive FEREEAEBER) FI AR (EA)
Directors, Heads of Department and General Counsel). RESBREER -

e To nominate members for committees or panels set up by the Board o AZERHZXVHNEESHKESEIRRKE -
and make recommendations of members for panels set up by the W ARITER e BAEEMNE B BHBK
Government that are relevant to the AFRC. 8-

e To consider any matters as requested by the Board from time to time. o REZRERTHEBEEMLMEET -
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COMMITTEES AND PANELS

ZEEREEH

Membership and attendance at the committee meetings during the

12-month period ended 31 March 2025 were as follows:

HZ2025F3A31BW12E A - ZEEERE
EEeRHERNT

Dr Kelvin Wong, SBS, JP (Chairman)’
Dr David Sun, GBS, JP (Chairman)?
Ms Miranda Kwok, JP (Vice-chairman)
Mr Roger Best, MH, JP

Ms Janey Lai (CEO)*®

Ms Janet Li

Mr Francis Mok

BERMEL  REFES - KV (EE)
FEEEL  @EFEE - KTHL(EE)?
WIWF L L - KFwt (FEE)

BomAKL - RERE - KFHL
WERBL L (TTHAEH)?

FFRZL

BHErt

Number of meetings: 3

The average attendance rate was 100%.

! Dr Kelvin Wong retired as the Chairman of the Compensation and Nomination
Committee on 31 December 2024 upon the expiry of his term as the Chairman of the

AFRC.

2 Dr David Sun was appointed as the Chairman of the Compensation and Nomination
Committee on 1 January 2025 upon his appointment as the Chairman of the AFRC.

8 Appointed on 9 April 2024.

Honorary Advisory Panel

Dr Eva Chan

Ms vy Cheung

Dr Christine Chow

Mr Fox Chu'

Ms Grace Hui

Mr Herbert Hui

Ms Ashley Khoo

Ms Janet Li

Mr William Mak

Mr Francis Mok

Prof Zabihollah Rezaee
Mr Paul Smith

Mr Richard Tsang

Ms Nancy Tse, JP

Mr Stephen Weatherseed?
Mr Stephen Wong

Mr Jackson Woo

Prof Wayne Yu

! Retired on 9 February 2025

2 Retired on 7 March 2025
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Financial Reporting Review Panel

Panel Convenors

Mr lan Farrar

Mr Mark Johnson'

Mr Ernest Lee

Mr William Lo?

Prof Phyllis Mo 2

Mr Paul Shieh, SC'
Mr Kwai Chang Tang'
Ms Priscilla Wong, BBS, JP'
Mr Kim Man Wong
Mrs Betty Yuen, JP

Members

Mr Hamilton Cheng

Ms Caroline Chiu

Ms Bella Chhoa

Mr Louis Chow '

Ms Irene Chu

Mr Benny Chung

Ms Candy Fong

Prof Ming Yi Hung

Mr Byron Khoo

Ms Bernardine Lam

Mr Kenneth Lau

Mr Leo Lee

Mr Gilbert Lee

Ms Alva Lee

Mr Jacob Lee

Mr Benjamin Lo

Mr Nim Chi Lo’

Ms Fanny Lung'

Mr Louis Mak?

Mr Christopher Morley '
Mr Simon Ng

Mr Simon John Riley
Mr Patrick Antonio Rozario
Ms Shelley So

Mr James Gary Stevenson
Mr Eric Tang

Mr Jim Tang

Prof Wang Xin

Mr Jason Yau

! Retired on 15 July 2024

2 Appointed on 16 July 2024

COMMITTEES AND PANELS
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COMMITTEES AND PANELS

ZEEREEH

Process Review Panel

Chairperson
Ms Edith Shih

Members

Mr Johnny Ip

Mr Patrick Law

Mr Andrew Mak, BBS, JP

Mr Kenneth Morrison'!

Dr David Sun, GBS, JP (ex-officio) '
Mr Frederick Tsang

Professor Anna Wong

Mr Yu Chung-leung

Dr Kelvin Wong, SBS, JP (ex-officio)?
Ms Denise Lam (representative of the Secretary for Justice) (ex-officio)

! Appointed on 1 January 2025

2 Retired on 31 December 2024

Audit Investigation Board

Chairman
Ms Janey Lai (ex-officio)

Members

Ms Ada Cheung
Ms Pearl Tie

Ms Carla Tu

Ms Florence Wong
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